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MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED
Registered office: Flat No.18, 5th Floor, 77, Sanchi Building, 

Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 (CIN: L74899DL1985PLC019749) 
Tel:91-011-46500500 E-mail: invest@mefcom.in

NOTICE

40thANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 40thAnnual General Meeting of Mefcom 
Capital Markets Limited will be held on Saturday, 27th September, 2025 at 
11:30 A.M.at E-15, Ansal Villas, Satbari, New Delhi-110030 to transact the 
following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 Adoption of Audited Financial Statements

	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements 
(Standalone and Consolidated) of the company for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors 
and Auditors thereon.

2.	 Appointment of Ms. Priyanka Mehta who retires by rotation

	 To appoint a Director in place of Ms.Priyanka Mehta (DIN :00058291), 
who retires by rotation and being eligible , offers herself for re-
appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3.	 Appointment of Dr. Shri Ram Khanna (DIN: 07723472) as Non-
executive Independent Director

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), 
the following resolution as Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 150, 
152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013(the “Act”) and the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014, including any statutory 
amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time 
being in force, the relevant provisions of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (the “SEBI LODR”),  Dr. Shri Ram Khanna (DIN: 
07723472), who has given his consent for the appointment and has 
submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence 
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable 
regulation of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and also declared 
that he has not been debarred from holding the office of director 
or continuing as a director of company by SEBI/ MCA or any other 
authority in India, who is eligible for Appointment for a first term 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder, his appointment, on recommendation of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, was made by the Board of Directors 
on 31st January 2025 for first term of 5 years, be and is hereby 

appointed as Non-executive Independent Director of the company 
with effect from 31st January 2025 to 30th  January 2030 and he shall 
not be liable to retire by rotation.

	

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised 
to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in giving 
effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 
things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable in this regard.”

4.	 Appointment of Mr. Vijay Kant Mishra (DIN: 00174380) as Non-
executive Independent Director

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), 
the following resolution as Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 150, 
152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013(the “Act”) and the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014, including any statutory 
amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time 
being in force, the relevant provisions of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (the “SEBI LODR”),  Mr. Vijay Kant Mishra (DIN: 
00174380), who has given his consent for the appointment and has 
submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence 
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable 
regulation of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and also declared 
that he has not been debarred from holding the office of director 
or continuing as a director of company by SEBI/ MCA or any other 
authority in India, who is eligible for Appointment for a first term 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder, his appointment, on recommendation of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, was made by the Board of Directors 
on 13th August 2025 for first term of 5 years, be and is hereby 
appointed as Non-executive Independent Director of the company 
with effect from 13th August 2025 to 12th August 2030 and he shall 
not be liable to retire by rotation.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised 
to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in giving 
effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 
things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable in this regard.”

By the Order of the Board of Directors
For Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 13-08-2025

VIJAY MEHTA
Managing Director

DIN: 00057151

NOTES:
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1.	 The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) setting out material facts 
concerning the business under item no. 3 to 4 of the Notice is 
Annexed hereto.  

2.	 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING (THE MEETING) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL, INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. 
THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.THE 
DULY STAMPED, FILLED AND SIGNED INSTRUMENT APPOINTING 
THE PROXY SHOULD HOWEVER, MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE 
CORPORATE OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY- 
EIGHT (48) HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE 
MEETING.

3.	 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not 
exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying 
voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the 
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may 
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act 
as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

4.	 During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed 
for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the 
conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to 
inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business 
hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days 
notice in writing is given to the Company.

5.	 Members and Proxies attending the Meeting are requested to 
bring their attendance slip duly filled along with their copy of 
Annual Report to the Meeting.

6.	 Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified true 
copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representatives 
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

7.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 
2015 (as amended), the Company is providing facility of 
remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to 
be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has 
entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, 
as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes 
by a member using remote e-voting will be provided by NSDL.

8.	 In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 
17/2020 dated April13, 2020, 20/2020 dated 5 May 2020 and 
subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 
General Circulars No.09/2024 dated 19 September 2024, issued 
by the  Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) and  Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated 3 October 
2024issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(‘SEBI’) (hereinafter collectively referred to as Circulars’) the 
Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website 
of the Company at https://www.mefcom.in/The Notice can 
also be accessed from the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. 
BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also 
disseminated on the website of NSDL (Agency for providing 
the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the 
AGM) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com

9.	  The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of 
the Company shall remain closed from Wednesday, 24th 
September, 2025 to Saturday, 27th September, 2025 (both days 
inclusive).

10.	 The Company has been maintaining, inter alia, the following 
statutory registers at its registered office: 

i.	 Register of contracts or arrangements in which directors are 
interested under section 189 of the Act

ii.	 Register of directors and key managerial personnel and their 
shareholding under section 170 of the Act.

	 In accordance with the MCA Circulars, the said registers will be 
made accessible for inspection through electronic mode and 

shall remain open and be accessible to any member during the 
continuance of the meeting.

11.	 Members holding shares in electronic form are requested 
to intimate immediately any change in their address or bank 
mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they 
are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding 
shares in physical form are requested to advise  any change 
in their address or bank and immediately to  the Company to 
its registered office or to Beetal Financial & Computer Services 
Private Limited (RTA) at Beetal house, 3rd Floor, 99  Madangir 
,Behind LSC, Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi-110062, 
quoting reference of the Registered Folio Number.

12.	 As a part of the green initiatives the Members, who have not 
yet registered their E-mail addresses, are requested to register 
their E-mail addresses with their DPs in case the shares are held 
by them in electronic form and with RTA in case the shares 
are held by them in physical form. Upon such Registration, 
all communication from the Company/RTA will be sent to 
the registered e-mail address. Shareholders are requested to 
update their email address with their Depository Participants 
to enable the Company to send communications electronically.

13.	 As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for 
making nomination is available for the Members in respect of 
the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered 
their nomination are requested to register the same. Members 
holding shares in physical form may submit Form No. SH-13 to 
the Company. Members holding shares in electronic form may 
submit the same to their respective depository participants.

14.	 The Members desirous of obtaining any information/
clarification concerning the accounts and operations of the 
Company are requested to address their questions in writing 
to the Company Secretary at least ten days before the Annual 
General Meeting, so that the information required may be 
made available at the Annual General Meeting.

15.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated 
the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 
participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to 
their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining 
their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form 
can submit their PAN details to RTA viz. to Beetal Financial & 
Computer Services Private Limited.

16.	 As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and 
various notifications issued by SEBI in this regard, transfer of 
securities would be carried out in dematerialised form only 
with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of transmission 
or transposition of securities. The Company has complied with 
the necessary requirements as applicable, including sending of 
letters by the RTA to shareholders holding shares in physical 
form and requesting them to dematerialize  their  physical 
holdings. Members who still hold share certificates in  physical  
form are advised to dematerialise their shareholding to also 
avail of numerous benefits of dematerialisation. Members can 
contact the Company’s RTA for assistance in this regard.

	 However ,the SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/
MIRSD-PoD/PCIR 2025/97 dated July 2, 2025 has decided 
to open a special window only for re-lodgment of transfer 
deeds, which were lodged  prior to the deadline of April 
01,2019 and rejected/ returned/ not attended to due 
to deficiency in the documents/ process/or otherwise 
for aperiod of six months from July 07,2025 till January 
06,2026.The members may avail the special window.

17.	 In case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as 
the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of 
Members of the Company will be entitled to vote. 

18.	 To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to 
exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change 
in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. 
Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) 
dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be 
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obtained from the concerned DP and holdings should be verified.

19.	 The Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-2025, circulated to the members of the Company, is also uploaded on the 
Company’s website https://www.mefcom.in/

a.	 The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed, Mr. Brij Kishore Sharma, (Membership No. FCS-F6206), proprietor of B K Sharma 
& Associates, as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting in a fair and transparent manner.

21.	 The Route Map, Attendance Slip and proxy form are attached to this Notice.

	 THE INSTRUCTIONS  FOR  MEMBERS  FOR  REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-  

	 The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, 24th September, 2025 at 9:00 am and ends on Friday, 26th September, 2025 at 
05:00 pm. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register 
of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Saturday, 20th September, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The 
voting  right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, 
being  Saturday, 20th September, 2025. 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?  

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts to access e-Voting facility. 

	 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders  Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL.

1.	 For OTP based login you can click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/
evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification 
code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and 
click on login. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period

2.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt 
you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 
able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under 
e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, 
option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS 
Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page 
of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 
on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period.	

4.	 Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by 
scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.
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Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL

1.	 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user 
id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.
cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then use your existing my 
easi username & password.

2.	 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible 
companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On 
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also 
links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website www.
cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number 
and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the 
evoting is in progress and able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat mode) 
login through their depository 
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see 
e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period.

	 Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option 
available at abovementioned website.

	 Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository 
i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a 
request at  evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800-21-09911

B.	 Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders 
holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. 

2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS 
login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your 
vote electronically.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL services i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in athttps://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing 
IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL e services after using your log-in credentials, click one-Voting and you can proceed to Step2 
i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4.	 Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of  holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) 
or Physical

Your User ID is:

a)	 For Members who hold shares in demat account 
with NSDL.

8	 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

	 For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12******then your 
user ID is IN300***12******.

b)	 For Members who hold shares in demataccount  
with CDSL.

16	 Digit Beneficiary ID

	 For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is 
12**************

c)	 For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed  by Folio Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001***and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001***

	 5.	 Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.
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c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i)	 If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the 
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the 
.pdf file is your 8-digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file 
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

(ii)	 If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

6.	  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a)	  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b)	  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/
folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d)	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting   system?

1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle 
is in active status.

2.	 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

3.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast your 
vote and click on “Submit” and “Confirm” when prompted.

5.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

6.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

7.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

 General Guidelines for shareholders

1.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant 
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to 
vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to bksharma162@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. 
other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on 
“Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab in their login.

2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 
Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will 
need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com 
to reset the password. 

3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-Voting user manual for Shareholders 
available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior 
Manager, National Securities Depository Ltd., 3rd Floor, Naman Chamber, Plot C-32, G-Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, 
Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400051 at the designated email address: evoting@nsdl.com or at telephone no. 022- 48867000.

	 Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and password and registration 
of email ids fore-voting for their solutions set out in this notice:

1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and 
back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to  Secretarial@
mefcom.in.

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID or 16-digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or 
copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) to Secretarial@mefcom.in.If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the 
login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3.	 Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password for e-voting by 
providing above mentioned documents.

4.	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account to access e-Voting facility.
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

Item No. 3: Appointment of Dr. Shri Ram Khanna (DIN:07723472) as Non-executive Independent Director

	 Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’), the Board has appointed Dr. Shri Ram Khanna 
(DIN:07723472) as Non-executive Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for first term of 5 years with effect from 31st 
January 2025 to 30th January 2030, subject to approval by the Members in this Annual General Meeting.

	 Dr. Shri Ram Khanna (DIN:07723472)  has given his declaration to the Board, inter alia, that (i) he meets the criteria of independence as 
provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), (ii) is not restrained from acting 
as a Director by virtue of any Order passed by SEBI or any such authority and (iii) is eligible to be appointed as a Director in terms of 
Section 164 of the Act and (iv) he is not aware of any circumstance which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or 
impact his ability to discharge his duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence. He has also given 
his consent to act as a Director. 

	 In the opinion of the Board, Dr. Shri Ram Khanna (DIN:07723472) is a person of integrity, possesses relevant expertise / experience 
and fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations for appointment as an Independent Director and he is 
independent of the Management. The Board recommends the Appointment of Dr. Khanna as Non-executive Independent Director, 
as proposed in the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 2 of the accompanying Notice for approval by the Members. The terms and 
conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors is available for inspection during the office hours till that date of AGM. 

	 None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives, except Dr. Shri Ram Khanna & his relatives, are in any way 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution.

Item No. 4: Appointment of Mr. Vijay Kant Mishra (DIN:00174380) as Non-executive Independent Director

	 Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’), the Board has appointed Mr. Vijay Kant Mishra 
(DIN:00174380) as Non-executive Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for first term of 5 years with effect from 13th 
August 2025 to 12th August 2030, subject to approval by the Members in this Annual General Meeting.

	 Mr. Vijay Kant Mishra (DIN:00174380) has given his declaration to the Board, inter alia, that (i) he meets the criteria of independence as 
provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), (ii) is not restrained from acting 
as a Director by virtue of any Order passed by SEBI or any such authority and (iii) is eligible to be appointed as a Director in terms of 
Section 164 of the Act and (iv) he is not aware of any circumstance which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or 
impact his ability to discharge his duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence. He has also given 
his consent to act as a Director. 

	 In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Vijay Kant Mishra (DIN:00174380) is a person of integrity, possesses relevant expertise / experience 
and fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations for appointment as an Independent Director and he 
is independent of the Management. The Board recommends the Appointment of Mr. Mishra as Non-executive Independent Director, 
as proposed in the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice for approval by the Members. The terms and 
conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors is available for inspection during the office hours till that date of AGM. 

	 None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives, except Mr. Vijay Kany Mishra & his relatives, are in any way 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution.

By the Order of the Board of Directors
For Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

Place	 : 	 New Delhi 
Date	 : 	 13-08-2025

VIJAY MEHTA
Managing Director

DIN: 00057151



MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED

7Annual Report 2024-25

Details of director(s) seeking appointment/re-appointment as required under Regulation 36 of the Securities And Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 & Secretarial Standard-2 on general meetings:t

Name Ms. Priyanka Mehta Dr. Shri Ram Khanna Mr. Vijay Kant Mishra

DIN 00058291 07723472 00174380

Date of Appointment 28.05.2024 31.01.2025 13.08.2025

Qualification Graduation in Economics Honors 
and Law Graduate from Delhi 
University and also Masters in Law 
from Columbia University,New York

Post-Graduate in Commerce, 
Bachelor in law and doctorate in 
International Business

Graduate in Science and Bachelor 
in law.

Expertise She has rich extensive experience 
with a deep understanding of the 
Capital Markets.

Dr. Shri Ram Khanna retired as a 
Professor at the Dept. of Commerce, 
University of Delhi (Delhi School of 
Economics campus). He is a member 
of the Academy of International 
Business (AIB) USA, since 1983 
and a member of the European 
International Business Academy 
(EIBA). He is a renowned expert in 
Global Textile Trade and Industry 
and also has special expertise in 
Consumer and Competition Law 
and Consumer Affairs.

Mr. Vijay Kant Mishra has over 30 
years of experience across industries 
Finance, like IT, ITeS, Textile, Agro & 
Food Processing, Manufacturing, 
Steel, New & Renewable Energy, 
Chemical & Fertilizers and Startups 
amongst others.

Other Directorship 1.	 IKMA Infoway Private Limited 1.	 Conaid Products & Solutions 
Private Limited

1.	 Shree Chaturbhuj 
International Private Limited

2.	 Nimantran Properties Private 
Limited

3.	 Liquid Fuels India Private 
Limited

4.	 Shree Chaturbhuj Consultants 
Private Limited

5.	 BB Global Private Limited 
6.	 Kamdhenu Global Alliance 

Limited

Shareholding in Company 0.04% Nil Nil

Relationship with any 
Director(s)

She is daughter of the Managing 
Director of the Company Mr.Vijay 
Mehta.

He is not related to any Directors of 
the Company.

He is not related to any Directors of 
the Company.
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BOARD’S REPORT
To,

The Members of

Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 40th Annual Report of Mefcom Capital Markets Limited along with Audited Financial Statements 
(Standalone & Consolidated) for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

1.	 FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Particulars Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Standalone Consolidated

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24

Total Revenue 20669.86 21793.41     22087.33 23,328.33

Total Expenditure 20946.11 21,102.99 22301.32 22,464.92

Profit/(Loss)Before Depreciation And Tax (PBDT) (270.61) 697.39 (206.89) 870.55

Less: Depreciation 5.64 6.97 7.09 7.14

Profit/(Loss)Before Tax (276.25) 690.42 (213.98) 863.41

Exceptional Items - - - -

Profit/(Loss)before Tax (276.25) 690.42 (213.98) 863.41

Prior Period Items (2.80) - (2.80) -

Less: Provisions for Taxation Including Deferred Tax - 18.04 - 18.04

Profit/(Loss)After Tax(PAT) (273.46) 672.38 (211.19) 845.37

	 No amount is proposed to be transfer to General Reserves in the Financial Year 2024-25.

2.	 FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

 	 During the period under review, the company’s total revenue earned is Rs. 20669.86 Lakhs as compared to the total revenue of Rs. 21793.41 Lakhs 
during the previous year. The Company has net Loss of Rs.  273.46 Lakhs in the current year as compared to Net Profit of Rs. 672.38 Lakhs in the 
previous year.

	 The Consolidated Revenue from Operations, the total revenue earned is Rs. 22087.33 Lakhs in the current year as compared to the total revenue 
of Rs. 23,328.33 Lakhs during the previous year. The Company has net Loss of Rs. 211.19 Lakhs in the current year as compared to Net Profit of Rs. 
845.37 Lakhs in previous year.

	 The reason for losses in the current year is majorly on account of diminution in the valuation of stock- in trade as on 31st March 2024 and 31st 
March2025 which has a combined impact in current year losses to the tune of  Rs. 545.14 Lakhs.

3.	 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	 The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 based on the Financial statements received from 
Subsidiary company as approved by its Board of Directors, have been prepared in accordance with relevant Indian Accounting Standards issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and forms an integral part of this Annual Report. These are financial Statements are also available for 
inspection during regular business hours at our registered office in New Delhi India.

4.	 DIVIDEND

	 No Dividend was recommended by the Board of Directors during the financial year 2024-25.

5.	 MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY    OCCURRED BETWEEN THE 
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATES AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

	 There has been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company occurred between the end of the financial 
year to which this financial statements relates and the date of the report.

6.	 CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

	 There was no change in primary business activities of the company during the period under Review. However, there is substantial strategical revival 
of Merchant banking activities carried out during the year. In this regard, We are pleased to inform that our Company successfully resumed its 
merchant banking activities after a hiatus of over two decades. In May 2025, our Merchant Banking Division established a new office at Nariman 
Point, Mumbai, India’s financial capital. This workspace enhances our capacity to foster enduring client partnerships and effectively support their 
growth trajectories. This strategic revival represents a significant milestone in our journey and underscores our renewed commitment to leveraging 
our expertise in capital markets activities comprised of IPO, FPO, Acquisitions & Takeovers, Right Issue and financial advisory services etc.

	 We are proud to report the successful completion of the Initial Public Offering (IPO) of Globe Civil Projects Limited in the first quarter of Fiscal Year 
2025-26, which received an overwhelming response from investors across all categories and listed on the main board of the stock exchanges. Our 
role as a merchant banker in this IPO further reinforces our position as a trusted and capable partner in capital markets. In addition to the IPO, we 
have built a healthy pipeline of fund raise mandates and anticipate a more robust deal pipeline in the financial year 2025-26.

7.	 SUBSIDIARIES/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

	 The Company has one Subsidiary Company namely M/s Mefcom Securities Limited. There has been no material change in the nature of the business 
of the subsidiary.

	 A separate statement containing the salient features of financial statements of the Subsidiary of your Company pursuant to Section 129 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013) is annexed as Annexure 1.

	 The Financial Statements of the Subsidiary Company and related information are available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office 
of your Company during business hours on all days except Second Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays up to the date of the Annual General 
Meeting (‘AGM’) as required under Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013. Any members desirous of obtaining a copy of the said Financial 
Statements may write to the company at its Registered Office. The Financial Statements including the Consolidated Financial Statements, Financial 
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Statements of Subsidiary and all other documents required to be attached to this report have uploaded on the website of your Company i.e https://
www.mefcom.in/ during the reporting period, no company has become or ceased to be a subsidiary/joint venture or associate Company.

8.	 CHANGES IN DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONALS (KMP)

	 During the financial year 2024–25 & till date, the following changes took place in the Board of Directors of the Company:

S. No. Name DIN Designation / Nature of 
Change

Effective Date

1. Ms. Priyanka Mehta 00058291 Appointed as Non-
Executive Director

28/05/2024

2. Ms. Nisha Ashwani Kumar 01089668 Resigned from Non-
Executive Director

28/05/2024

3. Mr. Sameer Rajendra 
Purohit

05002079 Appointed as Executive 
Director

12/08/2024

4. Mr. Shailendra Haruray 00075083 Resigned from Non-
Executive Independent 
Director

24/09/2024

5. Mr. Sham Nijhawan 00057210 Resigned from Non-
Executive Independent 
Director

24/09/2024

6. Dr. Shri Ram Khanna 07723472 Appointed as Non-
Executive Independent 
Director

31/01/2025

7. Mr. Ajay Kumar Poddar 00177384 Appointed as Non-
Executive Independent 
Director

31/01/2025

8. Ms. Priyanka Mehta 00058291 Change in Category from 
Non- Executive Director to 
Executive Director.

31/01/2025

9. Mr. Ajay Kumar Poddar 00177384 Resigned from Non-
Executive Independent 
Director

23/05/2025

10. Mr. Vijay Kant Mishra 00174380 Appointed as Non-
Executive Independent 
Director

13/08/2025

11. Ms. Priyanka Mehta 00058291 Change in Category from 
from Executive Director to 
Non- Executive Director

13/08/2025

	 During the financial year 2024–25 & till date, the following changes took place in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

S. No. Name M. No. / DIN Designation / Nature of 
Change

Effective Date

1. Ms. Priyanka Goyal A37645 Resigned from the 
position of Company 
Secretary & Compliance 
Officer

07/04/2025

2. Ms. Rachita Aggarwal A76311 Appointed as Company 
Secretary & Compliance 
Officer

23/05/2025

9.	 DISCLOSURES UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

 i.	 Annual Return: The Annual Return in accordance with the provisions of Section 92(3) and 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder is available on Company’s website and can be accessed at https://www.mefcom.in/

ii. 	 Meeting of Board of Directors: the Board of Directors of the company met 5 (Five) times during the year. The intervening gap between any two 
meetings was within the time period and the quorum at these meetings was inconformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Listing Regulations and the Secretarial Standard-1 on Board Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The following 
Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the Financial Year 2024-25.

S. No. Date of  Meeting Board’s Strength No. of  Directors Present

1 28.05.2024 6 6

2 12.08.2024 6 6

3 11.11.2024 4 4

4 31.01.2025 6 6

5 10.02.2025 6 4
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	 The particulars of the Directors and attendance at the Board Meetings during the year, the attendance in the last Annual General Meeting, 
number of other directorships (excluding directorship in Mefcom Capital Markets Limited) and Committee Memberships as on 31.03.2025 are 
as follows:

S.No. Name of Directors Designation

Attendance at the meeting No. of 
Directorship 

as on 
31.03.2025

No. of Committees positions held 
in the other public companies as 

on 31st March, 2025

BOD
AGM

Held on 
23.09.2024

Member Chairperson

1 Mr. Vijay Mehta Managing Director 5 Yes 6 1 0

2 Mrs. Nisha Ashwani 
Kumar Director 1

NA 
(Resigned 

on 
28.05.2025)

0 0 0

3 Mr. Sham Nijhawan
Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director

2

Yes 
(Resigned 

on 
24.09.2024)

1 0 0

4 Mr. Shailendra Haruray Non-Executive 
Independent 2

Yes 
(Resigned 

on 
24.09.2024)

5 0 0

5 Mr. Tarsem Garg Chand
Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director

5 Yes 3 0 0

6 Ms. Priyanka Mehta Director 5 Yes 2 0 0

7 Mr. Sameer Rajendra 
Purohit Executive Director 3 Yes 4 0 0

8 Dr. Shri Ram Khanna
Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director

2

NA 
(Appointed 

on 
31.01.2025)

2 0 0

9 Mr. Ajay Kumar Poddar
Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director

1

NA 
(Appointed 

on 
31.01.2025)

4 0 0

iii.	 Meeting of Independent Directors

	 In compliance of Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of Listing Regulations a separate meeting of Independent Directors 
was held on 10th February, 2025. Attendance of Independent Directors at the meeting is given hereunder:

Name of Director Present (Yes/No)

Dr. Shri Ram Khanna yes

Mr. Tarsem Garg Chand yes

Mr. Ajay Kumar Poddar yes

iv.	 Committees of the Board:

	 Currently the Board has three committees: Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee.

	 Audit Committee:

	 The Audit Committee comprises of Three members, out of them two are Independent Directors namely Mr. Shailendra Haruray (Chairman) & 
Mr. Tarsem Garg Chand and in view of the appointment of new Independent Directors Mr. Shri Ram Khanna and Mr. Ajay Kumar Poddar on the 
Board, the Audit committee has been re-constituted.  All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. 
During the financial year 2024-25 the Committee met Four times on 28.05.2024, 12.08.2024, 11.11.2024, 10.02.2025, and the attendance of 
members at the meetings is as under:

Name of Members Designation Number of Meetings entitled to attend No. of meetings attended

Mr. Shailendra Haruray
(Resigned on 24.09.2024) Chairman 

2 2

Mr. Tarsem Garg Chand Change in 
designation 
Member to 
Chairman (w.e.f. 
11.11.2024)

4 4

Mr. Vijay Mehta Member 4 4
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Dr. Shri Ram Khanna (Appointed on 
31.01.2025) Member 

1 1

Mr. Ajay Kumar Poddar (Appointed 
on 31.01.2025) Member 

1 1

Nomination & Remuneration Committee:  

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of three independent members namely Mr. Shailendra Haruray (Chairman), Mr. 
Tarsem Garg Chand & Mr. Sham Nijhawan and in view of the appointment of new Independent Directors Dr. Shri Ram Khanna and Mr. Ajay 
Kumar Poddar (Chairman) on the Board, the Nomination & Remuneration committee has been re-constituted.  During the financial year the 
committee met Two times on 12.08.2024 & 10.02.2025 the composition of the committee and attendance of members at the meetings are 
as under:

Name of Members Designation Number of Meetings entitled to attend No. of meetings attended

Mr. Shailendra Haruray (Resigned on 
24.09.2024) Chairman 

1 1

Mr. Sham Nijhawan (Resigned on 
24.09.2024) Member 

1 1

Mr. Tarsem Garg Chand Member 2 2

Mr. Ajay Kumar Poddar (Appointed 
on 31.01.2025) Chairman 1

1

Dr. Shri Ram Khanna (Appointed on 
31.01.2025) Member 1

1

Stakeholders ’Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises of three members out of them two are Independent Directors namely Mr. Shailendra 
Haruray (Chairman) and Mr. Tarsem Garg Chand and in view of the appointment of new Independent Directors Dr. Shri Ram Khanna (Chairman)
and Mr. Ajay Kumar Poddar on the Board, the Stakeholder Relationship committee has been re-constituted. During the year the committee 
met two times on 12.08.2024 & 10.02.2025 the composition of the committee and attendance of members at the meetings are as under:

Name of Members Designation Number of Meetings entitled to attend No. of meetings attended

Mr. Shailendra Haruray (Resigned on 
24.09.2024) Chairman 1 1

Mr. Tarsem Garg Chand Member 1 1

Mr. Vijay Mehta Member 2 2

Dr. Shri Ram Khanna (Appointed on 
31.01.2025) Chairman 1 1

Mr. Ajay Kumar Poddar (Appointed 
on 31.01.2025) Member 1 1

V.	 Directors’ Responsibility Statement

 	 The Board of Directors acknowledge the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the provisions of Section 134 (3) (c) read with Section 134 (5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, in preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 and state that:

1.	 In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 
with proper explanation relating to material departures.

2.	 The Directors had elected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and losses of the Company for that 
period.

3.	 The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

4.	 The Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 on a going concern basis.

5.	 The Directors had laid down proper internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are, 
adequate and are operating effectively.

6.	 That the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating effectively.

Vi.	 Independent Directors:

	 As per declaration received from Independent Directors they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6)of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and have complied with Rule 6 of the companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended as on date. As per 
evaluation done by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and by the Board of all the Independent Directors of the Company by considering 
the parameters such as whether the Directors uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity, the ability of the directors to exercise objective and 
independent judgment in the best interest of Company, the level of confidentiality maintained, adherence to the applicable code of conduct for 
Independent Directors and their role in bringing independent judgment during Board deliberations on strategy, performance, risk management, 
expertise and experience etc., the Independent Directors have maintained the integrity, expertise and have vast experience in the industry. They 
possess required qualification, skills, expertise and experience to be appointed as Independent Directors of the Company. The Independent Directors 
have complied with the code of conduct as prescribed in Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013.
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vii.	 Board  Evaluation:

	 In terms of requirements of Listing Regulations and provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Nomination cum Remuneration Committee of the Board of 
Directors of the Company specified the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its Committees and Individual Directors. Based on 
the same, annual evaluation of its own performance, performance of its Committees, Individual Directors including Independent Directors was carried 
out during the reporting period. The Company had adopted the evaluation parameters as suggested by ICSI and SEBI with suitable changes from 
Company’s perspective.

	 The Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its Committees as well as performance of the Directors individually 
including Independent Directors (excluding the director being evaluated) has been made.

	 Board evaluation was carried out on the basis of questionnaire prepared after considering various inputs received from the Directors, covering various 
aspects revealing the efficiency of the Board’s functioning such as development of suitable strategies and business plans, size, structure and expertise 
of the Board and their efforts to learn about the Company and its business, obligations and governance.

	 Performance evaluation of Directors was carried out by Board and Nomination and Remuneration Committee on parameters such as appropriateness 
of qualification, knowledge, skills and experience, time devoted to Board, deliberations and participation level in board functioning, extent of diversity 
in the knowledge and related industry expertise, attendance and participations in the meetings and workings there of and Initiative to maintain high 
level of integrity and ethics and the same was apprised to the Board of Directors.

	 Independent Directors had carried out performance evaluation of Non-Independent Directors in their separate meeting, the Board as a whole and 
performance evaluation of Chairman/ Managing Director was carried out, taking into account the views of Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

	 The performance of Committees were evaluated on parameters such as whether the Committees of the Board are appropriately constituted, have 
appropriate number of meetings held each year to accomplish all of its responsibilities, maintain the confidentiality of its discussions and decisions, 
conduct self-evaluation  at least  annually, make periodical reporting to the Board along with its suggestions and recommendations.

	 Independent Directors’ performance evaluation was carried out on parameters such as whether the Directors uphold ethical standards of integrity 
and probity, the ability of the directors to exercise objective and independent judgment in the best interest of Company, the level of confidentiality 
maintained, adherence to the applicable code of conduct for Independent Directors and their role in bringing independent judgment during Board 
deliberations on strategy, performance, risk management etc.

	 The Board/Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

viii.	 Particulars Of   Contracts  And  Arrangements With  Related Parties:

	 All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business 
and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties which 
could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions. The particulars of contracts 
or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the prescribed Form AOC-2 is annexed to the Board’s 
Report as Annexure-2. 

	 All Related Party Transactions entered into during the financial year were placed before the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for approval. 
The Company has a process in place to periodically review and monitor Related Party Transactions. All the related party transactions were in the 
ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis. The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions 
as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link: https://www.mefcom.in/mefcom-policies.html

ix.	 Remuneration Policy:  

 	 The brief of the Remuneration policy has been uploaded on website of the company at link: https://www.mefcom.in/mefcom-policies.html

10.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 15 (2) (a) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, compliance with the provisions of Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b)to(i)and(t)of sub-regulation(2)of regulation 46 and para C,D 
and E of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 (Listing Regulations) 
were not applicable on the company during the financial year 2024-25.

11.	 VIGIL MECHANISM

	 The Company has a Whistle Blower & Vigil Mechanism Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for grievances Redressal of the 
Directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behavior. All Protected Disclosures concerning financial/accounting matters should be 
addressed to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company for investigation. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of the 
Company and may be accessed at the link: https://www.mefcom.in/mefcom-policies.html

12.	 RISK MANAGEMENT

	 The Board has developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy which assists the Board to have a check up on all the risk factors that the 
organization faces such as strategic, financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, property, IT, legal, regulatory, reputational and other risks and assist the 
Board to overcome the Risks. Risk Management Policy as reviewed and approved by the Board and Audit Committee is available on the website and 
may be accessed at the link: https://www.mefcom.in/mefcom-policies.html

13.	 INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

	 The Board adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and 
the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures. For the assurance of best possible Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company, 
furtherance to the current Internal Financial Controls, a Policy of Internal Financial Control was reviewed and approved by the Board and Audit 
Committee and the same is available on the website and may be accessed at the link: https://www.mefcom.in/mefcom-policies.html

14.	 STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

	 The statutory auditor of Company, Satya Prakash Garg & Co., Chartered Accountants, Noida (FRN No.:017544N), was appointed for a period of 5 (five) 
years from the conclusion of 37th Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the 41th Annual General Meeting of the Company. The report 
given by the statutory auditor on the financial statements of the Company is part of the Annual Report. There are no qualifications, observations or 
adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report for the financial year 2024-25 which require any clarification/explanation. The Notes on financial statements are 
self-explanatory, and needs no further explanation. There has been no frauds reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 of Companies 
Act, 2013.
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15.	 COST RECORDS AND AUDIT

	 Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable for the business activities carried out by the Company and accordingly no such accounts and records are made and maintained.

16.	 DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

	 The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the said provisions are not applicable as per the 
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

17. 	 PARTICULARS  OF  LOANS  GIVEN, INVESTMENTS  MADE, GUARANTEES  GIVEN  AND  SECURITIES  PROVIDED

	 The company has given inter-corporate Loans to non-related parties and the company has not made any investment during the year under review. No 
Guarantee given or Securities provided by the Company during the year under review.

18.	 INSIDER TRADING  PREVENTION  CODE

	 Pursuant to the SEBI Insider Trading Code, the company has formulated a comprehensive policy for prohibition of Insider Trading in Equity Shares 
of the company to preserve the confidentiality and to prevent misuse of unpublished price sensitive information. The Company Secretary has been 
designated as the Compliance Officer. It has also been posted on the website and may be accessed at the link: https://www.mefcom.in/ shareholders.
html 

19.	 ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

1.	  Conservation of Energy: The Company is engaged in providing the financial services and such operations do not account for substantial energy 
consumption. However, the Company is taking all possible measures to conserve energy. Several environment friendly measures have been 
adopted by the Company such as:

a.	 The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: The Company always emphasized on the conservation of energy, it installed energy 
efficient equipments such as Installation of TFT monitors that save the power resulting in less consumptions of the energy, comparatively 
and also supports go green initiative.

b.	 The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: Installation of invertors/generators has been done as the alternate 
sources of energy.

c.	 The capital investment on energy conservation equipments: Investments in installation of invertors/generators.

2.	 Technology absorption: Operations of the company do not involve any kind of special technology and there was no expenditure on research & 
development during this financial year. However, your company continues to upgrade its technology.

a.	 The efforts made towards technology absorption: The Company continues to make substantial investments in its technology platforms and 
systems and spread its electronically linked branch network. During the year under review the Company has installed several software and 
this efforts will reduce the unnecessary usage of paper and manpower.

b.	 The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution: N.A.

c.	 In case of imported technology (imported during last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year: N.A.

d.	 The expenditure incurred on Research and Development : NIL

3.	 Foreign Exchanges Earnings & outgo (in Rs.): NIL

20.	 DETAILS  OF  SIGNIFICANT  AND  MATERIAL  ORDERS  PASSED  BY  THE  REGULATORS  OR  COURTS  OR TRIBUNALS  IMPACTING  THE GOING 
CONCERN  STATUS AND COMPANY’ S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

	 There have been No significant or material order passed by regulators or courts or tribunals which would impact the going concern status and 
company’s operations in future.

21.	 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES:

	 There was no employee in the company who if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for the year which, in the 
aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees or if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part 
of the year, at a rate which, in aggregate, was not less than Eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees per month for received remuneration in excess of that 
drawn by the Managing Director /Whole Time Director / Manager and holding 2% or more equity share capital of the company (himself ) along with 
and dependent children), and therefore we confirm that no employee drawing remuneration in excess of the limits as provided in the said rules.

22.	 DISCLOSURES REGARDING ESOPs

	 The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees.

23.	 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

	 Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review is presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report.

24.	 DEPOSIT

	 During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rule, 2014. There are no outstanding deposits as on 31st March, 2025.

25.	 SHARE CAPITAL

	 During the year under review, there were no change in the Capital Structure of the Company, the authorised and paid – up share capital of the 
Company remain unchanged. The Company has not issued Shares, Debentures with differential voting rights, granted stock options and sweat equity 
shares during the year. 

26.	 SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

	 The Board has appointed M/s B K Sharma & Associates, Company Secretaries in Whole-time Practice, to carry out Secretarial Audit of the Company for 
FY 2024-25 under the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 The Report of Secretarial Auditor is annexed with this report as Annexure-3. There are no qualifications, observations or adverse remark or disclaimer 
in the said report.
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27.	 DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT OF DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

	 None of the shares of the company are lying in demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account.

28.	 COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

	 Your Directors states that they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards and that 
such system is adequate and operating effectively and the applicable Secretarial Standards have been duly complied by your Company.

29.	 DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

	 The Company has in place a Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirement of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redresses) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. 
All employees are covered under the policy. No complaint has been received and disposed of during the year 2024-25.

The following is the status of complaints received and resolved during the financial year: 

Number of complaints received: NIL

Number of complaints disposed off: NIL

Number of complaints pending beyond 90 days: NIL

The above reflects the Company’s commitment to timely and effective redressal of complaints.

30.	 COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961 

	 The Company has complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, including all applicable amendments and rules framed thereunder. 
The Company is committed to ensuring a safe, inclusive, and supportive workplace for women employees. All eligible women employees are provided 
with maternity benefits as prescribed under the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, including paid maternity leave, nursing breaks, and protection from 
dismissal during maternity leave.  The Company also ensures that no discrimination is made in recruitment or service conditions on the grounds of 
maternity. Necessary internal systems and HR policies are in place to uphold the spirit and letter of the legislation. 

31.	 GENDER-WISE COMPOSITION OF EMPLOYEES 

	 In alignment with the principles of diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI), the Company discloses below the gender composition of its workforce as on 
the March 31, 2025.

Male Employees: 9

Female Employees: 2

Transgender Employees: 0

This disclosure reinforces the Company’s efforts to promote an inclusive workplace culture and equal opportunity for all individuals, regardless of 
gender.

32.	 LISTING OF SHARES

	 The shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited and the listing fee for the year 2024-25 has been duly paid.

33.	 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

	 The results of an organization are great reflective of the efforts put in by the people who work for/ with the company. The Directors fully recognize the 
contribution made by the employees of the company and all stakeholders for successful operations of the company. The Directors also place on record 
their sincere appreciation to Government Authorities, Customers, Suppliers, BSE, CDSL, NSDL, Bankers, Business  Associates,  Shareholders, Auditors, 
Financial Institutions and other individuals/bodies for their continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED

Place	 : 	 New Delhi 
Date 	 : 	 13.08.2025

Vijay Mehta
DIN: 00057151

Chairman & Managing Director
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Annexure-1

FORM AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) Statement containing salient features 
of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures.

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(in Lakhs)

Sl. No. Particulars Description

1. Name of the subsidiary Mefcom Securities Limited

2.
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different

31st March,2025
From the holding company’s reporting period

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of The relevant Financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries

N.A.

4. Share capital 500

5. Reserve & Surplus (32.00)

6. Total assets 503.48

7. Total Liabilities 503.48

8. Investments --

9. Turnover 1417.18

10. Profit before taxation 62.27

11. Provision for taxation --

12. Profit after taxation 62.27

13. Proposed Dividend -

14. % of shareholding 60%

Notes:

Names of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations–Nil

Names of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year–Nil

For and on behalf of the Board

Vijay Mehta
Chairman/Managing Director
DIN: 00057151

DebashisKaliprasannaMohanty
Chief financial Officer

Rachita Aggarwal`
Company Secretary

Place	 :	 New Delhi
Date	 :	 13.08.2025
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Annexure-2

FORM NO. AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014

Form for Disclosure of  particulars  of  contracts/arrangements entered into by  the company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 
188 of  the Companies Act,2013 including  certain  arms length  transaction under third  proviso  there  to.

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis

S.No. Particulars Details

a) Name(s) of  the related party & nature of  relationship NIL

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL

c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value , if any NIL

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ NIL

f ) Date of approval by the Board NIL

g) Amount paid as advances ,if any NIL

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under first proviso to 
section188

NIL

2.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

S.No. Particulars Details

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of  relationship Vijay Mehta, Managing Director & Shareholder

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Lease Agreement

c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions Ongoing

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the 
value, if any:

10.45 Lakhs p.a.

e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 12.11.2021

f ) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED

Place	 :	 New Delhi
Date	 :	 13.08.2025

Vijay Mehta 
DIN:00057151 

Chairman/Managing Director



MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED

17Annual Report 2024-25

Annexure -3

Form: MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024

{Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}

To,

The Members,

Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

	 We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices 
by Mefcom Capital Markets Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

	 Based on our verification of Mefcom Capital Markets Limited’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
Secretarial Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism 
in place to the extent, in them manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

	 We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

1. 	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

2. 	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956(‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

3. 	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

4. 	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

5. 	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act 1992(‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the reporting period under audit).

(d) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the reporting period under audit).

(e) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the reporting period under audit)

(f ) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies 
Act and dealing with client;

(g) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the 
reporting period under audit)

(h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the 
reporting period under audit).

(i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(j)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018.

(k)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992.

6. 	 Specific laws applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identified and compliance where of as confirmed by the management, 
that is to say: No specific law is applicable to the Company.

	 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i.	 Secretarial Standards on the Board and General Meetings (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii.	 The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

	 During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as 
mentioned above.
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	 We further report that, during the year under review:

	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive

	 Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes, if any in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place 
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

	 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda are generally sent at least seven 
days in advance or at shorter period, as the case may be, a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

	 Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting member`s views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

	 We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

	 This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure – A which forms an integral part of this report.

Date	 :	 13.08.2025
Place	 :	 Jaipur

For B K Sharma & Associates
Company Secretaries

(Brij Kishore Sharma)
Proprietor

M.No.F6206; CPNo.12636
Peer Review Certificate No. 6711/2025                                                                                                                                     

UDIN: F006206G001117316 

Annexure-A

To,

The Members,

Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these secretarial records based on my audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents 
of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that .We believe that the processes and practices we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for the opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

4. 	 Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules, and regulations and happening 
of events etc.

5. 	 The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. 
Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. 	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date	 :	 13.08.2025
Place	 :	 Jaipur

For B K Sharma & Associates
Company Secretaries

(Brij Kishore Sharma)
Proprietor

M.No.F6206; CPNo.12636
Peer Review Certificate No. 6711/2025                                                                                                                                     

UDIN: F006206G001117316 
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MANAGMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT 

The relevant industry for the Company is financial service sector, which is considered as a touch stone of socio economic development of the country. 
FY 2024-25 witnessed a drop in indices with small & large caps led by key constituents of the NIFTY. However, the broader markets especially the small 
and mid-cap segment did not perform very well during financial year 2024-25. However in FY 2025-26 there is recovery in mid cap & small cap. India 
also emerged as one of the strongest economies in view of  reforms by the present government. It has become 4th largest economy in the world leaving 
behind Japan & UK. India also emerged as one of the strongest economies amongst the emerging markets. India has a diversified financial sector, which 
is under going rapid expansion.

SEGMENT–WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company has one business segment as primary segment. The Segment has been identified taking into account the nature of activities, the differing 
risks and returns, the organization structure and internal reporting system. There are no reportable geographical segments.

The segment wise information can be viewed in the notes to accounts statement annexed with the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 
2025.

OUTLOOK, OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Your company being a Merchant banker seeks opportunities in Capital markets. The primary Markets business has seen a good growth during this 
financial year and fund raising from IPO market has been considerably high during financial year 2024-25.

India is expected to be major economy in years to come but it is facing major challenge of falling farm incomes and the lack of job opportunities for 
thousands of youth entering the labour force each month.

On the external front the on-going Trade war between US & China and rest of the world and also the happenings of EU are factors which could exert 
pressure on markets. The Company has a net Loss of Rs.  273.46 Lakhs as on 31st March, 2025 against a net profit of Rs. 672.38  Lakhs (As per Ind AS) in 
the previous year ended on 31st March, 2024.

The Company has various Main Board & SME issues in pipeline to be listed on NSE and BSE in the coming financial year. Further, it is expected that the 
Capital market will do better in the future, hence it is expected that it will enlighten the growth prospects of the Company.

RISK & CONCERNS

The Industry has witnessed intense competition and entry of several big players. The Capital market industry in which your company is operating is 
subject to extensive regulations. The Company evaluates the associated risks and works accordingly.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has built adequate systems on Internal Financial Controls towards achieving efficiency and effectiveness in operations, optimum utilization 
of resources, and effective monitoring thereof as well as compliance with all applicable laws The internal control mechanism comprises a well-defined 
organization structure, documented policy guidelines, predetermined authority levels and processes commensurate with the level of responsibility 
and that same are adequate and operating effectively. The Audit Committee reviews the reports of the Internal Auditors and monitors the effectiveness 
and operational efficiency of these internal control systems. The Audit Committee gives valuable suggestions from time to time for improvement of the 
Company’s business processes, systems and internal controls.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the company has booked loss as compared to previous year profit; the management is in the process of better utilization of 
available resources and proper implementation of business strategies and remains optimistic about improving performance and turnover in the coming 
years. The small and medium enterprises have now got a separate SME platform to list their shares so now even small companies can now go for IPO 
which will enhance the profitability and market share of your Company.

However, the Company started the Merchant banking activities in the month of September 2024, Despite a favorable IPO market in FY 2024-25, we were 
unable to capitalize on this opportunity but we look forward to leveraging this initiative moving forward.

It is expected that the Company is having good future prospects and will give better results as the capital market is also expected an upward trend in 
future.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

The Company’s belief in trust, transparency and teamwork improved employee efficiency at all levels. The Company’s commitment to harmonious 
industrial relations resulted in enhancing effectiveness of operations and enabled the achievement of international benchmarks in financial business. 
The company’s ongoing objective is to create an inspirational work climate where talented employees engaged in creating sustained value for the 
stakeholders. Training and orientation programs are being arranged periodically, to update the employees in the work techniques. The overall human 
resources are positive and we would be able to effectively achieve the desired objectives. The Company has developed an environment of harmonious 
and cordial relations with its employees.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in foregoing paragraphs of this report describing the current industry structure, outlook, opportunities, etc., may be construed as “forward 
looking statements”, based on certain assumptions of future events over which the Company exercises no control. Therefore, there can be no guarantee 
as to their accuracy. These statements involve a number of risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially 
from those that may be implied by these forward looking statements. Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to growth, competition, 
domestic & international economic conditions affecting demand, supply & price conditions, changes in Government regulations, tax regimes and other 
statutes.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED

Place	 :	 New Delhi
Date	 :	 13.08.2025

Vijay Mehta
DIN:00057151

Chairman/Managing Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of 

MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

	 We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements 
of MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement 
of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income , the 
statement of changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the 
year then ended, and Notes to the standalone financial statement 
including  a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information(hereinafter referred to as “ the standalone 
financial statements”)

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Company Act 
2013  in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, 
its total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other 
comprehensive income , its changes in equity and  its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

	 Basis for Opinion

	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

	 Key Audit Matters

	 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have not 
found any higher risk at audit planning stage, challenges in forming 
an opinion on financial statements, related party transaction and 
other complex transaction.

	 Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements 
and Auditor’s Report Thereon

	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation 
of the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board’s Report including  Annexures  to Board’s Report, Business 
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 
Information, but does not include the standalone financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

	 Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of  the standalone  financial  statements, 
our responsibility  is  to read the other  information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent  
with  the  standalone  financial statements, or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If based on work we have performed, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.

	 Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone  Financial   
Statements

	 The Company’s Board of  Directors is  responsible  for  the  matters 
stated in  section 134(5)  of the  Act with  respect  to the preparation 
of these standalone financial statements that  give  a  true  and  
fair  view  of  the  financial  position, financial performance, total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows  of the  
Company  in  accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally  accepted  in  India.  This  responsibility  also  
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the  Act for safeguarding  the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone 
financial  statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

	 In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability  to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable,  matters related to going  
concern and using  the  going  concern  basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

	 The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
financial reporting process.

	 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements

	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions  of  
users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
standalone  financial  statements, whether due  to  fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant 
to the audit  in  order to design  audit  procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on  the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions  that  may  cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
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conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may  cause  the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of 
the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

	 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone 
financial statements that, individually  or in  aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative  materiality  and qualitative factors in  (i)  planning  the  
scope of our  audit  work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
financial statements.

	 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing  of the audit 
and significant audit  findings,  including  any significant  deficiencies  
in  internal control that we identify  during our audit.

	 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with  relevant  ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

	 From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key  audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

	 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the 
Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 
Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

	 A  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books.

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account.

d)	  In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the 
directors as on 31st March 2025 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st 
March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f )	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
over financial  reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”.

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us:

i.	 The Company does not have any pending litigations which 
would impact  its financial position. 

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses. 

iii.	    There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 017544N

Place	 :	 Noida

Dated	 :	 23/05/2025

CA Satya Prakash Garg
Partner

Membership No. 083816
PEER REVIEWED

UDIN: 25083816BMLGZV8411

Annexure- A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ section of our report of even date. We report that:

(i).  (a)	 The company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars including quantitative details and situation of its fixed 
assets.

(b)	 As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the 
management at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification.in our opinion the frequency of 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company 
and nature of its assets. The discrepancies reported in such 
verification were not material and have been properly dealt with in 
the books of accounts.

(c)	 based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of 
reporting the  true and fair view of the financial statements 
and according to information and explanations given by the 
management, the title deeds of immovable properties included in 
investment are held in the name of the company

(ii)	 As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified 
during the year by the management at reasonable intervals and no 
material discrepancy was noticed on physical verification of stocks 
by the management as compared to book records.

(iii).	 According to information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the records of the Company has not 
granted interest bearing Unsecured loan repayable on demand 
, to Subsidiary companies, Limited liability Partnership or other 
parties and in our opinion the terms and conditions of loans are not 
detrimental to the interest of the company.

(iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation 
given to us, the company has given any loans to directors or to any 
other persons in whom the director is interested. The company has 
complied with the provision of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with 
respect to the loans given, and investment made, guarantee and 
securities given. 

(v)	 The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does 
not have any unclaimed deposits as at the end of the financial year 
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therefore  the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under are not 
applicable to the Company.

(vi)	 As informed to us, The Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under Section 148 of the company Act 
2013 for any of the services rendered by the company. 

(vii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, in 
respect of statutory dues:

(a)	 The company has generally been regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service 
Tax, Stamp Duty or any other statutory dues, applicable to it 
to the appropriate authorities.   

(b)	 There were no undisputed dues outstanding in respect of 
Provident Fund, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Stamp Duty or any other 
statutory dues in arrear as of March 31, 2025, for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(viii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us the Company there are no such transactions that are not 
recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the income tax Act-1961 and no such undisclosed income has been 
recorded in the accounts during the year.

(ix)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us the Company has not obtained a term loans and 
unsecured loans during the year and based on the records of the 
company the company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans 
or borrowings to financial institutions, bank. 

(x)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us the Company did not raise any money by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and 
term loans during the year, therefore, the provisions of para 3(ix) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)	 To the best of our knowledge and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company 
or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed 
or reported during the year or during the course of our audit. No 
Report under section 143(12) has been filed by the auditors in form 
ADT-4 and also there is no whistle-blower complaints have been 
received during the year by the company.

(xii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, in our 
opinion the Company is not a Nidhi company as prescribed in 
section 406 of the Act, therefore, the provisions of para 3(xii) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of 
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements 
as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company have an internal audit system commensurate with its 
size and nature of business activities and the reports of the internal 
auditors have been considered by the statutory auditors.

(xv)	 In our opinion and According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with its directors and therefore, 
the provisions of Section 192 of Companies Act are not applicable 
to the Company.

(xvi)	 The Company is a SEBI registered Merchant Banker and even they 
are NBFC, Merchant Banker is not required to be registered under 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

(xvii)	 The Company has incurred loss during the current financial year, 
and it has not incurred any losses in the immediately preceding 
financial year.

(xviii)	 During the year there is no resignation of statutory auditors of 
the company and therefore, the provisions of this para of the Caro 
Order-2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)	 In our opinion and According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, and on the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected 
date of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities and other information accompanying the financial 
statements , there is no material uncertainty exist as on date of the 
audit report and the company is capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet dated.

(xx)	 In our opinion and According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not developed and implemented any 
corporate social responsibility initiatives as the said provisions are 
not applicable to the company hence clause xx is not applicable to 
the company.

(xxi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on our examination of the records of the Company 
comprising independent audit reports on financial statement of 
subsidiary company, No Adverse remark and any qualification 
has been included in the audit report of the subsidiary Company 
therefor the said provisions clause xxi is not applicable to the 
company.

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 017544N

Place	 :	 Noida

Dated	 :	 23/05/2025

CA Satya Prakash Garg
Partner

Membership No. 083816
PEER REVIEWED

UDIN: 25083816BMLGZV8411                                                                          
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st 
March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31st March, 2025, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 017544N

Place	 :	 Noida

Dated	 :	 23/05/2025

CA Satya Prakash Garg
Partner

Membership No. 083816
PEER REVIEWED

UDIN: 25083816BMLGZV8411                                                                           
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT  MARCH 31, 2025
(Amount in ₹ Lakh) 

Note 
No. 

 As at
March 31,2025 

 As at
March 31,2024 

I. ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

(a)	 Property, plant and equipment 3  13.79  17.37 

(b)	 Intangible assets 4  0.01  0.01 

(c)	 Financial assets

(i)	 Investments 5  768.06  898.31 

(ii)	 Loans

(d)	 Deferred tax assets (net) 6  -    16.04   

Total Non-Current Assets  781.86  931.73 

Current Assets

(a)	 Financial assets

(i)	 Stock In trade 7  1,914.86 1395.57 

(ii)	 Trade receivables 8  19.92  58.28 

(iii)	 Cash and Bank Balances 9  69.96  28.91 

(iv)	 Bank Balances other than (ii) above  -   

(v)	 Other financial assets 10  0.04  -   

(b)	 Other current assets 11  6.84  15.54 

(c)	 Current tax assets (net) 12  32.78  27.12 

Total Current Assets  2,044.40  1,525.42 

Total Assets  2,826.25  2,457.15 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a)	 Equity share capital 13  914.02  914.02 

(b)	 Other equity 14  1,099.20  1,445.96 

Total Equity  2,013.21  2,359.98 

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(a)	 Borrowings from HDFC 16  -    -   

(b)	 Provisions 15  -    0.72 

Total Non-Current Liabilities  -    0.72 

Current liabilities

(a)	 Financial liabilities

(i)	 Borrowings 17  804.22  61.61 

(ii)	 Trade Payables 18  -    -   

- Due to micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Due to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iii)	 Other Financial Liabilities 19  4.89  3.53 

(b)	 Other current liabilities 20  3.93 0.10 

(c)	 Current Tax liabilities 21  -   31.20-   

Total Liabilities  813.04  96.44 

 813.04  97.17 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  2,826.25  2,457.15 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1 to 50

As per our report of even date

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration No. 017544N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

Satya Prakash Garg
Partner
M. No.083816

Vijay Mehta
Managing Director
DIN : 00057151

Priyanka Mehta
Director
DIN : 00058291

Place	 :	 New Delhi
Dated	 :	 May 23, 2025

Debashis K Mohanty
Chief Financial Officer

Rachita Aggarwal
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs except EPS)

Particulars Note 
No.

 For the Year ended 
Mar 31, 2025

 For the Year ended 
Mar 31, 2024

I. Revenue from operations 22  20,644.42  21,752.73 

II. Other income 23  25.44  40.68 

III. Total Income (I+II)  20,669.86  21,793.41 

IV. Expenses :

Purchase of shares/ securities (stock-in-trade)  21,143.08  21,170.41 

Change in Stock in Trade of shares / securities  (519.29)  (291.46)

Employee benefit expense 24  122.11 26.97

Finance cost 25  38.42 62.07 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 26  5.64  6.97 

Other expenses 27  156.15  128.02 

Total expenses (IV)  20,946.11  21,102.99 

V. Profit/(Loss) before tax (III-IV)  (276.25)  690.42 

VI. Exceptional and Extraordinary Items

VII. Profit/(Loss) before tax (V-VI)  (276.25)  690.42 

VIII. Tax Expense:

Current Tax  -   18.04   

Deferred Tax  -    -   

Income tax earlier years  (2.80) -

Total tax expense (VIII)  (2.80)  18.04

IX. Profit/(Loss) for the year (VII-VIII)  (273.46) 672.38 

X. Other Comprehensive Profit/ (Loss)

(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i)	 Equity instruments through other comprehensive income  (73.31)  140.44 

(ii)	 Income tax (expense)/credit relating to above items

Total Other Comprehensive Profit/(Loss) (X)  (73.31)  140.44 

XI. Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X)  (346.77)  812.82 

XII. Earnings per equity share of ₹ 2 each 28

  - Basic  (0.60)  1.47 

  - Diluted  (0.60)  1.47 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1 to 50

As per our report of even date

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration No. 017544N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

Satya Prakash Garg
Partner
M. No.083816

Vijay Mehta
Managing Director
DIN : 00057151

Priyanka Mehta
Director
DIN : 00058291

Place	 :	 New Delhi
Dated	 :	 May 23, 2025

Debashis K Mohanty
Chief Financial Officer

Rachita Aggarwal
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(Amount in ₹ Lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2025

For the year ended  
March 31, 2024

a) Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the year  (276.25)  690.42 

Adjustments for:
-	 Depreciation and amortisation  5.64  6.97 

-	 Bad Debts written off  - 

-	 Interest expense  38.39  61.93 

-	 Interest income  (0.54)  - 

-	 Profit on sale of  Investment  -  - 

-	 Profit on sale of  Fixed Assets (Car)  -  - 

-	 Miscallaneous Income  (1.00)  (0.14)

-	 Provision for Gratuity(Written Back)  (0.72)

-	 Provision for Income Tax(Written Back)  2.80  18.04 

-	 Mat Credit/Deferred tax assets written off  16.04  - 

-	 Divident received from investments  (23.90)  (40.55)

Operating profit before changes in assets and liabilities  (239.55)  736.68 
Adjustments for:

-	 Decrease / (increase) in stock-in-trade  (519.29)  (291.46)

-	 Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables  38.36  (58.28)

-	 Decrease / (increase) in current financial assets  (0.04)  1.30 

-	 Decrease / (increase) in other current assets  3.04  (1.96)

-	 Increase/ (decrease) in current liabilities  5.19  (1.54)

-	 Increase/ (decrease) in financial liabilities  - 

-	 Increase/ (decrease) in Trade payables  -  (38.01)

-	 Increase/ (decrease) in Tax Provision  (31.20)  (18.04)

 (743.50)  328.71 
Taxes (paid)/refund - -

Cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities  (743.50)  328.71 
b) Cash flows from investing activities

-	 Loans given - -

-	 Capital expenditure  (2.06)  (0.24)

-	 (Purchase)/Sale of non-current investments  56.95  270.01 

-	 Interest received  1.54  0.14 

Divident received from investments  23.90  40.55 

Cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities  80.33  310.45 
c) Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid  (38.39)  (61.93)

Borrowings  742.60  (571.35)

Cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities  704.22  (633.28)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) during the year ( a+b+c)  41.05  5.88 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  28.91  23.03 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  69.96  28.91 

Notes:
(i)	 Statement of cash flows has been prepared using Indirect method in accordance with Ind AS-7 
(ii)	 Refer note no. 9 to the financial statements for components of cash and cash equivalents.
See accompanying notes to the financial statements	 1 to 50
As per our report of even date

As per our report of even date

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration No. 017544N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

Satya Prakash Garg
Partner
M. No.083816

Vijay Mehta
Managing Director
DIN : 00057151

Priyanka Mehta
Director
DIN : 00058291

Place	 :	 New Delhi
Dated	 :	 May 23, 2025

Debashis K Mohanty
Chief Financial Officer

Rachita Aggarwal
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE NINE MONTHS  ENDED MARCH  31, 2025
A.	 Equity Share Capital										          (Amount in ₹ Lakh) 

Balance as at  
April 1, 2023

Movement during the 
year 2023-24

Balance as at  
March 31, 2024

Movement during the 
year 2024-25

Balance as at  
Mar 31, 2025

 91,401,680  -  91,401,680  -  91,401,680 

B.	 Other Equity	 (Amount in ₹ Lakh)

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive 
Income

Total

General  
reserve

Capital  
reserve

Special  
reserve

Securities 
premium 

Retained  
earnings

Equity instruments 
through OCI

Balance as at 1 April 2023 7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98 (1,205.15)  556.19  633.14 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  -  -  -  672.38  672.38 

Other Comprehensive income/(loss) 
for the year  -  -  -  140.44  140.44 

Trf form OCI to retained earnings  - 

Balance as at March 31, 2024 7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (532.76)  696.63  1,445.96 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  -  -  -  (273.46)  -  (273.46)

Other comprehensive income for 
the half year (net of tax)

 -  -  -  -  (73.31)  (73.31)

Trf form OCI to retained earnings  - 

Balance as at March 31, 2025 7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (806.22)  623.32  1,099.20 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

As per our report of even date

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration No. 017544N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

Satya Prakash Garg
Partner
M. No.083816

Vijay Mehta
Managing Director
DIN : 00057151

Priyanka Mehta
Director
DIN : 00058291

Place	 :	 New Delhi
Dated	 :	 May 23, 2025

Debashis K Mohanty
Chief Financial Officer

Rachita Aggarwal
Company Secretary
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Notes Forming Part Of The Standalone Financial Statements For The 
Year Ended March 31, 2025

1)	 Company Overview

	 Mefcom Capital Markets Limited is company incorporated under the 
Companies Act, 1956 and is engaged in capital market operations 
and merchant banking activities.

2)	 Significant Accounting Policies

a)	 Basis of preparation

	 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

	 Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a 
newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to 
an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting 
policy hitherto in use.

b)	 Use of estimates and judgements

	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with 
Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and 
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect 
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting 
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are 
made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances 
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in 
the financial statements in the period in which changes are made. 
Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the results are known/ materialised.

c)	 Revenue recognition

(i)	 Income from trading in securities and derivatives comprises 
profit/ loss on sale of securities held as inventories and profit/ 
loss on equity and derivatives instruments. Profit/ loss on sale 
of securities are determined on FIFO basis.

(ii)	 On settlement or squaring-up of contracts for Equity Index/ 
Stock Futures, the profit or loss is calculated as the difference 
between settlement/ squaring-up price and contract price. 
Accordingly, debit or credit balance pertaining to the settled/ 
squared-up contract in ‘Mark-to-Market Margin–Equity Index/ 
Stock Futures Account’ is recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

(iii)	 Income from Merchant Banking Operations is accounted on 
accrual basis, when the right to receive is established in terms 
of the agreements with respective clients.

(iv)	 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive 
payment is established.

(v)	 Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest 
income is accrued on, time basis, by Reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective Interest rate applicable, which 
is the rate that exactly Discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the Expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s 
net Carrying amount on initial recognition

d)	 Employee benefits 

(i)	 Short-term employee benefits

	 Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense on 
an undiscounted basis in the statement of profit and loss of the 
year in which the related service is rendered.

(ii)	 Post-employment benefits

	 Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)

	 Liabilities with regard to the gratuity plan are determined 
on estimation basis at each balance sheet date using the 
projected unit credit method. The Company recognizes the net 
obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an 
asset or liability. Remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains 
and losses, on the net defined benefit liability are recognised 
in Other Comprehensive Income which are not reclassified to 
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

e)	 Property, plant and equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation / impairment loss, if any. Cost includes freight, duties, 
taxes, and other incidental expenses.

f)	 Intangible assets

	 Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amount of 
amortization. Cost includes freight, duties, taxes, and other incidental 
expenses.

g)	 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on 
Written down value method at the rate and in the manner prescribed 
in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

	 Amount spent on renovation including extensions on office 
premises, taken on rent, is capitalised under the head ‘Leased hold 
improvements’ and amortised on straight line basis during the lease 
term on pro-rata basis.

	 The Company has applied for the one-time transition exemption of 
considering the carrying cost on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2016 
as the deemed cost under IND AS and hence regarded thereafter as 
historical cost.

h)	 Stock-in-trade

	 Securities acquired with the intention to trade are classified as stock-
in-trade. Stock-in-trade is valued at market/ fair value. The profit or 
loss on sale of securities is recognised on trade date in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.

i)	 Leases

	 Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” 
and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 
1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method on the date of 
initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease 
liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the 
incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at its carrying 
amount. 

	 The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for 
building. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, 
at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset 
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether 
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, 
the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use 
of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the 
lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the 
asset.

	 The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is 
a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value 
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating 
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of 
the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

j)	 Income tax

	 Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax 
(including MAT). Tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
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Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly 
in equity or other comprehensive income, in such cases the tax is 
also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

	 Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
profit and are accounted for using the liability method. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognized for 
all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and 
allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary 
differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax 
rates. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set and 
presented as net.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against 
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

	 Credit of MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent 
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal 
income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which 
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the 
MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said 
asset is created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and 
shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same 
at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of 
MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing 
evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax 
during the specified period.

k)	 Earnings per Share

	 Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net 
profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing 
the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company 
by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted 
average number of equity shares that could have been issued 
upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive 
potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had 
the equity shares been actually issued at fair value.

l)	 Financial Instruments

	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial 
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity.

(i)	 Initial Recognition and measurement

	 On initial recognition, all the financial assets and liabilities are 

recognized at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the 
financial asset or financial liability except financial asset or 
financial liability measured at fair value through profit or loss. 
Transaction costs of financial assets and liabilities carried at fair 
value through the Profit and Loss are immediately recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii)	 Subsequent measurement

	 Financial assets carried at amortised cost

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost 
if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVTOCI)

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

	 A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit and 
loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value 
through other comprehensive income.

	 Financial liabilities

	 The financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other 
payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet 
date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the 
short maturity of these instruments.

m)	 Provisions and Contingencies

	 A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation 
as a result of past event and it is probable that there will be an 
outflow of resources in respect of which a reliable estimate can be 
made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible 
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where 
it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 
Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements. Contingent assets are not recognised.
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March  31, 2025
3.	 Property, plant and equipment	 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars Leasehold  
Improvements

Furniture 
& Fixtures

Office 
Equipments

Computers Laptops Vehicles Total

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2023  9.24  10.25  26.91  14.29  0.45  69.63  130.77 

Additions  -    -    0.24  -    -    -    0.24 

Disposal/Adjustments  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2024  9.24  10.25  27.15  14.29  0.45  69.63  131.01 

Additions  -    -    -    -    2.06  -    2.06 

Disposal/Adjustments  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2025  9.24  10.25  27.15  14.29  2.50  69.63  133.07 

Accumulated Depreciation

 As at April 1, 2023  9.24  9.99  22.11  14.00  0.42  50.91  106.68 

 Depreciation for the year  -    -    1.07  0.03  5.86  6.97 

 Disposal/Adjustments   -   

 As at March 31, 2024  9.24  9.99  23.18  14.03  0.42  56.78  113.64 

Depreciation for the year  1.28  -    0.34  4.02  5.64 

Disposal/Adjustments  -   

As at March 31, 2025  9.24  9.99  24.46  14.03  0.76  60.79  119.28 

Net Carrying amount

As at March 31, 2025  -    0.26  2.70  0.26  1.74  8.84  13.79 

As at March 31, 2024  -    0.26  3.98  0.26  0.02  12.86  17.37 

4.	 Intangible assets		  (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars Software

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2023  0.17 

Additions  -   

Disposal/Adjustments  -   

As at March 31, 2024  0.17 

Additions  -   

Disposal/Adjustments 

Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2025  0.17 

Accumulated amortisation

As at April 1, 2023  0.16 

Charge for the year  0.01 

Deduction/ Adjustment

As at March 31, 2024  0.16 

Charge for the year  0.00 

Deduction/ Adjustment  -   

As at March 31, 2025  0.17 

Net Carrying amount

As at March 31, 2025  0.01 

As at March 31, 2024  0.01 
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March  31, 2025
5	 Non-current investments 	 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Investments in equity instruments

(i) Quoted - Measured at Fair Value through OCI

3,08,000 ( March 31, 2024: 3,50,000 of  ₹ 5 each ) equity shares of ₹ 5 each 
fully paid of Banswara Syntex Ltd.

 375.14  505.40 

(ii) Unquoted

a) Delhi StockExchage Ltd.
40,000 (March 31, 2024: 40,000) equity shares of ₹ 1 each fully paid

 70.00  70.00 

b) Investment in subsidiary measured at cost
29,99,900 (March 31, 2024: 29,99,900) equity shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid

 322.91  322.91 

Less: Impairment in value of investments - -

Total  768.06  898.31 

Notes: 

(a) Aggregate amount of market value of quoted investments  76,805,724  50,540,000 

(b) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 39,291,324 39,291,324

(c) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments. - 

6	 Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Deferred tax assets 16.04   

Mat credit entitlement

Total 16.04   

7	 Inventories

Particulars As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Stock-in-trade of shares and securities* 1914.86 1395.57

Total  1,914.86  1,395.57 

	 *Fair value through P&L.

8	 Trade receivables

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Trade receivable considerd good- secured 19.92 58.28

Trade receivable considerd good- unsecured

Trade receivable which have significant increase in credit risk

Trade receivable -credit impaired

 19.92  5828 

Less : Allowance for impairement loss - -

Total  19.92  58.28 

9	 Cash and cash equivalents 	 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Cash on hand  0.44  0.46 

Balances with banks

    -  in current accounts  69.52  28.45 

 69.96  28.91 
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	 Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Fixed Deposit (more than three months but less than twelve months) - -

Total - -

10	 Other current financial assets

Particulars As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Unsecured, considered good

(i)  Interest accrued on FDR  0.04 -

(ii) Advances against goods, services and others  -   -

Total  0.04  - 

11	 Other current assets

Particulars As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Unsecured, considered good

(i) Prepaid expenses  6.45  0.46 

(ii) Balance with Government authorities  -   14.41 

(iii) Others(Pre-paid Brok & Prepaid GST with ICICI Sec)  -    -   

(iv) Advances to Staffs  -    -   

(v) Dividend Receivable  0.40  0.68  

Total  6.84  15.54 

12	 Other non-current assets

Particulars As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Advance tax including TDS receivable (net of provision)  32.78  27.12 

Total  32.78  27.12 

13	 Equity share capital

Particulars  As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

 No. of shares  Amount (₹)  No. of shares  Amount (₹) 

Authorised 

Equity shares of ₹ 2 each  50,000,000  1,000.00  10,000,000  1,000 

Total  50,000,000  1,000.00  10,000,000  1,000 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of ₹ 2 each  45,700,840  914.02  45,700,840  914.02 

31st March 2024 :Equity shares of ₹ 2 each

Total  45,700,840  914.02  45,700,840  914.02 

(a)	 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :

Particulars  As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

 No. of shares  No. of shares 

Shares at the beginning of the year  45,700,840  45,700,840 

Add: shares issued during the year  -  - 

Less: buy back of shares during the year  -  - 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  45,700,840  45,700,840 

(b)	 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 2/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. 
The dividend , if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders except in case of interim dividend. In the 
event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.
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(c)	 Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars  As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

 No. of shares  % holding  No. of shares  % holding 

Vijay Mehta  29,745,755 65.09%  29,133,255 63.75%

Karan Mehta  3,625,000 7.93%  3,625,000 7.93%

Shaleen Toshniwal  -   0.00%  -   0.00%

	 As per the records of the company, the above shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

14	 Other equity	 		   (Amount in ₹ Lakh) 

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Total

General  
reserve

Capital  
reserve

Special  
reserve

Securities 
premium 

Retained  
earnings

Equity 
instruments 
through OCI

Balance as at March 31, 2022  7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (709.00)  496.79  1,069.89 

Loss for the year  -    -    -    -    (496.15)  -    (496.15)

Other Comprehensive loss for the year 
(net of tax)

 -    -    -    -    59.40  59.40 

Balance as at March 31, 2023  7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (1,205.15)  556.19  633.14 

Profit for the Year  -  -  -  -  672.38  672.38 

Other Comprehensive loss for thehalf  
year (net of tax)

 -  -  -  -  140.44  140.44 

Balance as at March 31, 2024  7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (532.76)  696.63  1,445.96 

Profit / (Loss) for the year  -  -  -  -  (273.46)  (273.46)

Other Comprehensive loss for Nine 
months (net of tax)

 -  -  -  -  (73.31)  (73.31)

Balance as at March 31, 2025  7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (806.22)  623.32  1,099.20 

15	 Long term provisions

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Provision for employee benefits

-   Gratuity  -    0.72 

Total  -    0.72 

16	 Borrowings ( Non-Current)

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Car Loan from ICICI Bank - -

Total  -    -   

17	 Borrowings (Current)

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Advances received from Director agt. Sale of shares in subsidiary  250.00  - 

Fridge/TV Loan from HDFC Bank  -   0.05   

MTF Margin from ICICI Bank (Sucured)  238.20  38.72 

SAM Margin from ICICI Bank (Sucured)  316.02  22.84 

Total  804.22  61.61 
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18	 Trade Payables		 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Due to micro, small and medium enterprises * - -

Due to others(ICICI Securities Ltd)  -    -   

Total  -    -   

	 * Refer note no. 28

19	 Other financials liabilities

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Employee payable  -    1.57 

Others Liabilities  4.89 1.97 

Director's Remuneration payable  -    -   

Total  4.89  3.53 

20	 Other current liabilities

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Statutory dues payable  3.93 0.10 

Other liabilities

Total  3.93  0.10 

21	 Other current liabilities

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Provision for Income Tax - 31.20

Total - 31.20

22	 Revenue from operations

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Sale of shares/ securities (stock-in-trade)  20,521.17  21,730.28 

Income from merchant banking activities  133.63  12.45 

Profit on sale of shares/securities (Non-Delivery) (net)  (0.67)  (16.46)

Loss on dealing in equity / Index derivatives (net)

Profit on sale of shares/securities (Future & option)  (9.71)  26.46 

Total  20,644.42  21,752.73 

23	 Other income

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortised cost

   -  Interest on Inter-corporate deposit

   -  Interest on FDRS  0.34 

   -  Interest on Income Tax Refund  0.20  - 

Dividend income  23.90 40.55 

Miscellaneous income  1.00  0.14 

Profit on sale of Fixed Assets  -    -   

Profit on sale of Investment  -    -   

Total  25.44  40.68 

24	 Employee benefit expenses

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Salaries and wages to staffs  54.71  23.97 

Staff welfare expenses - -

Directors Remuneration  67.40 3.00

Total  122.11 26.97
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25	 Finance costs 		  (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Interest expenses  38.39 61.93 

Bank and other finance charges  0.04  0.14 

Total  38.42  62.07 

26	 Depreciation  and Amortisation Expenses

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Depreciation on Tangible Assets 5.64 6.97

Depreciation on Intangible Assets 0.00 0.01

5.64 6.97

27	 Other expenses

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Rent  10.45  10.45 

Electricity charges  3.95  3.92 

Security trans Tax & Other chgs( Incl. Stamp Duty,Trans Chg)  48.47  49.46 

Brokerage Paid  31.60  31.76 

GST on Share Trading  6.01  6.04 

Pledge Charges  -    -   

Depositary Charges  0.43  0.06 

Printing & stationery  0.39  0.11 

Travelling and conveyance - Domestic  14.25  4.94 

Travelling - Foreign  5.54 -

Postage and telephone expenses  0.10  0.17 

Fees & subscription  14.35  6.88 

Insurance & Extended warranty  0.79  1.04 

Professional charges  1.35  3.67 

Auditor Fee #  0.75  0.64 

Repair & maintenance to buildings  5.62  1.82 

Repair & maintenance to others  1.56  0.87 

Advertisement & publicity expenses  0.35  0.34 

Sponsorship fee  -    -   

Business promotion expenses  2.21  2.36 

Income Tax (AY 2021-22)  -    -   

Filing & Listing Fees  0.14  0.73 

Diwali Expenses  0.39  -   

Vehicle Running & Maintenance  0.28  0.18 

Director's sitting fee  0.40  0.36 

Donation  1.00  0.94 

Balance Written off  3.58  0.05   

Miscellaneous expenses  2.20  1.24 

Total  156.15  128.02 

	 # Details of payment to auditors

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Statutory audit fees 0.75 0.64

Tax audit fees - -

Out of pocket expenses - -

Total payment to auditors 0.75 0.64
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28	 Earning Per Share (EPS)

	 The calculation of Earning Per Share (EPS) as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss has been made in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS-33) “Earnings Per Share” given as under: - 						                     (Rs. In Lakhs except EPS)

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders (₹) (A)  (273.46)  672.38 
Weighted average number of outstanding equity shares (B) 457.01 457.01
Nominal value per equity share (₹) 2.00 2.00
Basic EPS (Amount in ₹) (A/B)  (0.60)  1.47 
Diluted EPS (Amount in ₹) (A/B)  (0.60)  1.47 

29 	  Contingent liabilities and commitments 								        (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

	 As per the management, the company do not have any Contingent Liability and Commitment for the Current year 2024-25 (Previous year: Nil).

Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

(a)	 Corporate Guarantee issued to banker of MSL - -

(b)	 Dues in respect of disputed income tax Income tax - -

	 (ii)	 Commitments

	  The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for is ₹ Nil (March 31, 2025: ₹ Nil ) 

30.	 Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006		

	 The Company has not received any memorandum from ‘suppliers’ (as required to be filed by the ‘Supplier’ with the notified authority under the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006) claiming the status as on 31st March, 2025 as Micro, Small or medium enterprises. 
Consequently, the interest paid/ payable by the company to such Suppliers during the year is Nil (Previous year : Nil).

 	 The information regarding micro, small and medium enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis 
of information available with the company. 								        (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

S.No.  Particulars   As at  
March 31, 2025 

 As at  
March 31, 2024 

 1  Principal amount due outstanding  -    -   

 2  Interest due on (1) above and unpaid   -    -   

 3  Interest paid to the supplier  -    -   

 4  Payments made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during  the year.  -    -   

 5  Interest due and payable for the period of delay  -    -   

 6  Interest accrued and remaining unpaid  -    -   

 7  Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding year  -    -   

30 	  a)	 Income tax expense 		  (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

 Particulars   As at  
March 31, 2025 

 As at  
March 31, 2024 

 Current tax  -    18.04 

 Deferred tax  -    -   

 Income tax earlier years  -    - 

 Total  -    18.04 

b)	 Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

 	  A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit / (loss) before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised 
income tax expense for the year indicated are as follows: 

 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

 Particulars   As at  
March 31, 2025 

 As at  
March 31, 2024 

 Loss before tax (A)  (276.25)  690.42 

 Enacted tax rate in India (B) 25.17% 25.17%

 Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate (A*B)  (69.53)  173.77 

  Tax effect of the amount not deductible for computing taxable income 
 Expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits  -    0.13 

 Earlier tax adjustment  -    (163.79)

 Differential tax on capital gain  -   7.95 

 Total -  18.04 
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c)	 Deferred tax 

	 Management reviewed the deferred tax assets/liabilities on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting purpose at reporting date and in view of virtual uncertainty of taxable profits, the deferred tax (net 
assets) on temporary differences for the reporting financial year i.e. 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025 has not been considered.

													             (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Particulars   As at  
March 31, 2025 

 As at  
March 31, 2024 

 Gross deferred liability  -    -   

 Gross deferred tax assets 

 Provision for gratuity  -  0.11 

 Plant property and equipment  -  2.77 

 Total  -  2.88 

31 	  Leases 

	 The Company has leased facilities under cancellable operating lease arrangements with a lease term ranging from one to five years, which are 
subject to renewal at mutual consent thereafter. The cancellable arrangements can be terminated by either party after giving due notice. The lease 
rent expenses recognised during the year amounts to ₹ 10,45,200 ( Previous year: ₹ 10,45,200)

32	 Segment Information as required by Ind AS - 108 ‘Operating Segments’  

	 The Company is in the business of capital market activities which comprises of proprietary trading in securities and derivatives, merchant 
banking, having similar economic characteristics which is regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker for assessment of Company’s 
performance and resource allocation. Hence, the Company has only one reportable segment under Ind-AS 108 ‘Operating Segments’ .		
													             (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Sr. No.  Particulars  As at  
Mar 31, 2025 

 As at  
Mar 31, 2024 

1 Segment Revenue

(a) Trading in Shares & Securities  20,510.79  21,740.28 

(b) Merchant Banking Service  133.63  12.45 

Total Revunue  20,644.42  21,752.73 

2 Segment Results

(a) Trading in Shares & Securities  (113.00)  861.33 

(b) Merchant Banking Service  38.39  10.51 

Total  (74.61)  871.84 

(c) Other Income/Expenses (Unallocated)  (198.85)  (181.41)

Total Profit / (Loss)  before Tax  (273.46)  690.42 

3 Segment Assets

(a) Trading in Shares & Securities  2,702.83  2,352.16 

(b) Merchant Banking Service  44.95  0.75 

(c) Unallocated  78.47 104.24 

Total Segment Assets  2,826.25  2,457.15 

4 Segment Liabilities

(a) Trading in Shares & Securities  804.22  61.61 

(b) Merchant Banking Service  6.56  -   

(c) Unallocated  2.26  35.56 

Total Segment Liabilities  813.04 97.17 

Total Capital Employed  2,013.21  2,359.98 
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33	 Disclosures of related parties as required by Ind AS-24 “Related Party Disclosures”

(a)	 List of related parties
Name of the related party Nature of relationship

(i) Key Managerial Personnel
Vijay Mehta Managing Director
Priyanka Mehta Director ( w.e.f. 28.05.2024 )
Sameer Rajendra Purohit Executive Director (w.e.f. 12.08.2024 )
Debashis Mohanty Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 30.08.2020)
Priyanka Goyal Company Secretory (w.e.f. 20.05.2023 to 07.04.2025)
Rachita Aggarwal Company Secretory (w.e.f. 23.05.2025)

(ii) Non Executive Directors
Sham Nijhawan Independent Director ( resigned on 24.09.2024 )
Shailendra Haruray Independent Director ( resigned on 24.09.2024 )
Tarsem Chand Garg Independent Director
Nisha Aswani Kumar Director ( resigned on 28.05.2024 )
Shri Ram Khanna Independent Director ( w.e.f. 31.01.2025)
Ajay Kumar Poddar Independent Director ( 31.01.2025 to 23.05.2025))

(ii) Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel
Priyanka Mehta

(iii) Enterprise over which key management personnel are able to  exercise 
significant influence
IKMA Infoway Pvt. Ltd.

(iv) Subsidiary Company
Mefcom Securities Limited

	 (b)	  The following transactions were carried out with related parties: -	 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2025

Year ended  
March 31, 2024

Rent expenses
Vijay Mehta  10.45  10.45 

Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Shares(Net)–Non-Delivery
Mefcom Securities Limited  -   - 

Profit /(Loss) on dealing in derivatives
Mefcom Securities Limited  -    -   

Purchase  of shares
Mefcom Securities Limited - - 

Sale  of shares
Mefcom Securities Limited   -  - 

Remuneration paid
Vijay Mehta  24.00  3.00 

  Priyanka Mehta 7.65 -
  Sameer Rajendra Purohit 35.75 -

Debashis kumar mohanty  7.69 7.80 
Priyanka Goyal 3.00 3.00

Sitting Fee
Sham Nijhawan 0.06  0.12 
Shailendra Haruray 0.06  0.12 
Tarsem chandra Garg 0.14  0.12 

  Priyanka Mehta 0.06 -
  Sameer Rajendra Purohit 0.03 -

Shri Ram Khanna 0.05 -
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(c)	 The following balances are due to/ from related parties: -	

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

Remuneration payable

Debashis mohanty  -  0.65 

Pooja Sharma  -    0.25 

34	 Financial risk management objectives

	 Financial risk factors

	 The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk( equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s 
primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of capital markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 
The risk management policies are established to ensure timely identification and evaluation of risks, setting acceptable risk thresholds, identifying 
and mapping controls against these risks, monitor the risks and their limits, improve risk awareness and transparency.

	 I.	 Market risk

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The 
Company is exposed in the ordinary course of its business to risks related to equity price flactuations and interest rates.	

(a)	 Equity price risk	

	 Equity Price Risk is related to the change in market reference price of the investments in equity securities. The fair value of some of the 
Company’s investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income exposes the Company to equity price risks. These 
investments are subject to changes in the market price of securities. 

	 The following details the Company’s sensitivity to a 5% movement in the fair value of such equity instruments as at the end of the 
reporting period(s): -

 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Effect of Increase in fair value of equity instruments 18.76 25.27

Effect of Decrease in fair value of equity instruments  (18.76)  (25.27)

II.	 Credit risk	

	 Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. 
Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration 
risks. Currently company is not exposed to credit risk as it has zero trade receivables.

													              (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Trade receivables 19.92 58.28

Loss allowances  -    -   

Trade receivables 19.92 58.28

III.	 Liquidity risk

	 Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to 
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company generates sufficient cash 
flow for operations, which together with the available cash and cash equivalents and short term investments provide liquidity in the 
short-term and long-term.

	 Maturity profile of financial liabilities:

	 The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.  

													             (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Trade payables  -   

Upto 12 months  -    -   

More than 12 months  -    -   

Non Current Borrowings

Upto 12 months  -    -   

More than 12 months - -
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Current borrowings

Upto 12 months 804.22 61.61

More than 12 months  -    -   

Other Financial libilities

Upto 12 months - -

More than 12 months  -    -   

Total 804.22 61.61

35	 Financial instruments

A	 Capital management

	 “The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return 
to stakeholders through efficient allocation of capital towards expansion of business, opitimisation of working capital requirements and 
deployment of surplus funds into various investment options. 

	 The Company’s capital requirement is mainly to fund its capacity expansion and repayment of principal and interest on its borrowings. The 
principal source of funding of the Company has been, and is expected to continue to be, cash generated from its operations supplemented 
by funding from borrowings from banks and other parties.

	 The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to total equity. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and 
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents while equity includes all capital and reserves 
of the Company.

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

Long term borrowings - -
Current borrowings 804.22 61.61
Less: Cash and cash equivalent 69.96 28.91
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  -    -   
Net debt 734.25 32.70
Total equity 2,013.21 2,359.98
Gearing ratio 36.47% 1.39%

B	 Fair value of measurement

a)	 Financial assets		  (Amount in ₹ lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Designated at FVTOCI*

(i) Long term investments 375.14 375.14 505.40 505.40

Total 375.14 375.14 505.40 505.40

Designated at amortised cost

Long term investments  392.91  392.91  392.91  392.91 

Trade receivables  -    -    -    -   

Cash and bank balances 69.96 69.96 28.91 28.91

Bank Balances other than above

Other financial assets  1.30  1.30  158.08  158.08 

Total 462.87 462.87 421.83 421.83

Designated at FVPL#

Stock in trade 1,914.86 1,914.86 1,395.57 1,395.57

Total 1,914.86 1,914.86 1,395.57 1,395.57

Total financial assets 2,752.88 2,752.88 2,322.79 2,322.79

b)	 Financial liabilities	 (Amount in ₹ lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Designated at amortised cost

Long term borrowings - - - -

Short term borrowings 804.22 804.22 61.61 61.61

Trade payables  -    -    -    -   

Total financial liabilities 804.22 804.22 61.61 61.61
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* FVTOCI - Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income	

#FVPL- Fair Value through Profit and loss

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties in an orderly market transaction, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) 
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).	

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

36	 Ratios

	 The following are analytical  ratios for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2025: -

Particulars Numerator Denominator For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Variance

Current Ratio* Current assets Current liabilities 2.51 15.82 -84.11%

Debt- Equity Ratio* Total debt Shareholder's equity 0.40 0.03 -1231.56%

Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio*

Earnings available 
for debt service

Debt service -5.97 11.94 -150.00%

Return on Equity Net Profit after taxes Avg. shareholder's 
equity

-12.51% 34.42% -136.33%

Inventory Turnover 
Ratio**

Revenue Avg. Inventory 12.47 17.40 -28.32%

Trade receivable 
Turnover Ratio

Revenue Avg. Trade receivables NA NA -

Trade payable Turnover 
Ratio

Purchases Avg. Trade payables NA NA -

Net Capital Turnover 
ratio**

Revenue Avg. Working capital 15.52 22.62 -31.39%

Net Profit Ratio*** Net profit Revenue -1.32 3.09% -142.87%

Return on Capital 
employed

Earnings before 
interest and taxes

Capital employed -8.44 31.07% -127.17%

Return on Investment Earnings before 
interest and taxes

Avg. Total assets -2.25 8.01% -128.10%

	 *The variances (Adverse) in the (i) current ratio is due to larger increase in the short term borrowing in comparision to hte smaller increase in stock-
in-trade due to diminution in the valuation, decrease in trade receivales etc. (ii) Debt Equity ratio is due to large increase in borrowings & decrese in 
equity due to absence of profit or loss suffered during the year and (iii) Debt Service coverage ratio is due to abesence of profit before finace cost 
(interest) and depreciation.

	 **The variances (Adverse) in the (i) Net Capital Turnover ratio and Inventory Turnover ratio is due to decrease in revenue from operations (ii) Net 
Profit ratio, Return on capital employed, Return on Investment is due to absence of profit or loss suffered during the year resulting in decrease in 
share solders equity. 

	 ***The company is primarily engaged in the business of trading of securities which is high volatility segment, the Margin depends on fluctuation of 
market prices of securities held by the company.

37	 Valuatiion of Property, Plant & Equipment, intangible Asset

	 The company has not revalued its property, plant & machinery and Intangible Assets or both during the current or previous year

38	 Loans or advances to specified persons

	 No loans or advances in the nature of loan are granted to prmoters, directors, KMPS, and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) 
either severally or jointly with other person, that are repayable on demand or without speciifyng any terms or period of repayments.

39	 Details of Benami property held

	 No proceedings have been intiated on or pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

40	 Borrowing secured against current assets

	 Company has not  obtained any borrowings against current assets during the year. 

41	 Wilful Defaulter

	 The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

42	 Relationship with struck off companies

	 The company has no transactions  with the companies struck off under section 248 of the companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the companies act, 
1956.
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43	 Registration of charges or satisfaction with registration of Companies(ROC)

	 There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory Period.

44	 Compliance with number of layers of companies

	 The companies has complied with number of layers prescribed under the section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with companies (Restriction 
on number of Layers) Rules, 2017	

45	 Compliance with approved scheme(s) of Amalgamation	

	 The company has not entered into any schemes of arrangemnet which has an accounting impact on current or Previous financial year. 

46	 Utilisation of borrowed funds and Share premium

	 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has 
not received any fund from any party(Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

47	 Undisclosed  income

	 There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the cureent or previous year in the tax assessments under the income Tax 
Act,1961,that has not been recorded previously in the books of Account.

48	 Details of crypto currency or virtual currency 

	 The company has not traded or invested in crypto curency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

49	 Utilisation of Borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions

	 The borrowings obtained by the company from the banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were 
taken.

50	 Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever considered necessary to conform to current year’s classification.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements			   1 to 50

As per our report of even date

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of 

MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED.

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

	 We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial 
statements of MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, 
and the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive 
income , the statement of changes in Equity and Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended, and Notes to the Consolidated 
financial statement including  a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information(hereinafter referred to as 
“ the Consolidated financial statements”)

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated financial 
statements give the information required by the Company Act 
2013  in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, 
its total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other 
comprehensive income , its changes in equity and  its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

	 Basis for Opinion

	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

	 Key Audit Matters

	 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, 
were of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the Consolidated financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. We have not found any higher 
risk at the audit planning stage, challenges in forming an opinion on 
financial statements, related party transactions and other complex 
transactions.

	 Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements 
and Auditor’s Report Thereon

	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation 
of the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board’s Report including  Annexures  to Board’s Report, Business 
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 
Information, but does not include the Consolidated financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

	 Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of  the Consolidated  financial  
statements, our responsibility  is  to read the other  information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent  with  the  Consolidated  financial statements, or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

	

	 Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated  Financial   
Statements

	 The Company’s Board of  Directors is  responsible  for  the  matters 
stated in  section 134(5)  of the  Act with  respect  to the preparation 
of these Consolidated financial statements that  give  a  true  and  
fair  view  of  the  financial  position, financial performance, total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows  of the  
Company  in  accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally  accepted  in  India.  This  responsibility  also  
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the  Act for safeguarding  the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated 
financial  statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

	 In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability  to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable,  matters related to going  
concern and using  the  going  concern  basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

	 The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
financial reporting process.

	 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the Consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions  of  users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial 
statements.

	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We are also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
Consolidated  financial  statements, whether due  to  fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant 
to the audit  in  order to design  audit  procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has an adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.
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•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on  the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions  that  may  cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention to our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may  
cause  the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
Consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

	 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated 
financial statements that, individually  or in  aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative  materiality  and qualitative factors in  (i)  planning  the  
scope of our  audit  work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
financial statements.

	 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing  of the audit 
and significant audit  findings,  including  any significant  deficiencies  
in  internal control that we identify  during our audit.

	 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with  relevant  ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

	 From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key  audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

	 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the 
Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 
Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books.

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with in this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account.

d)	  In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the 
directors as on 31st March 2025 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st 
March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f )	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
over financial  reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”.

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us:

i.	 The Company does not have any pending litigations which 
would impact its financial position. 

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses. 

iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 017544N

Place	 :	 Noida

Dated	 :	 23/05/2025

CA Satya Prakash Garg
Partner

Membership No. 083816
PEER REVIEWED

UDIN:25083816BMLGZW4129                                    

Annexure- A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ section of our report of even date. We report that:

(i).(a) 	 The company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars including quantitative details and situation of its fixed 
assets.

(b)	 As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the 
management at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification.in our opinion the frequency of 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company 
and nature of its assets. The discrepancies reported in such 
verification were not material and have been properly dealt with in 
the books of accounts.

(c)	 based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of 
reporting the  true and fair view of the financial statements 
and according to information and explanations given by the 
management, the title deeds of immovable properties included in 
investment are held in the name of the company

(ii)	 As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified 
during the year by the management at reasonable intervals and no 
material discrepancy was noticed on physical verification of stocks 
by the management as compared to book records.

(iii).	 According to information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the records of the Company has not 
granted interest bearing Unsecured loan repayable on demand 
, to Subsidiary companies, Limited liability Partnership or other 
parties and in our opinion the terms and conditions of loans are 
not detrimental to the interest of the company.

(iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation 
given to us, the company has given any loans to directors or to any 
other persons in whom the director is interested. The company has 
complied with the provision of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with 
respect to the loans given, and investment made, guarantee and 
securities given. 
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(v)	 The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does 
not have any unclaimed deposits as at the end of the financial year 
therefore  the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under are not 
applicable to the Company.

(vi)	 As informed to us, The Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under Section 148 of the company Act 
2013 for any of the services rendered by the company. 

(vii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, in 
respect of statutory dues:

(a)	 The company has generally been regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service 
Tax, Stamp Duty or any other statutory dues, applicable to it 
to the appropriate authorities.   

(b)	 There were no undisputed dues outstanding in respect of 
Provident Fund, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Stamp Duty or any other 
statutory dues in arrear as of March 31, 2025, for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(viii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us the Company there are no such transactions that are not 
recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the income tax Act-1961 and no such undisclosed income has been 
recorded in the accounts during the year.

(ix)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us the Company has not obtained a term loans and 
unsecured loans during the year and based on the records of the 
company the company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans 
or borrowings to financial institutions, bank. 

(x)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us the Company did not raise any money by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and 
term loans during the year, therefore, the provisions of para 3(ix) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)	 To the best of our knowledge and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company 
or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed 
or reported during the year or during the course of our audit. No 
Report under section 143(12) has been filed by the auditors in form 
ADT-4 and also there is no whistle-blower complaints have been 
received during the year by the company.

(xii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, in our 
opinion the Company is not a Nidhi company as prescribed in 
section 406 of the Act, therefore, the provisions of para 3(xii) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of 
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements 
as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company have an internal audit system commensurate with its 
size and nature of business activities and the reports of the internal 
auditors have been considered by the statutory auditors.

(xv)	 In our opinion and According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with its directors and therefore, 
the provisions of Section 192 of Companies Act are not applicable 
to the Company.

(xvi)	 The Company is a SEBI registered Merchant Banker and even they 
are NBFC, Merchant Banker is not required to be registered under 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

(xvii)	 The Company has incurred loss during the current financial year, 
and it has not incurred any losses in the immediately preceding 
financial year.

(xviii)	 During the year there is no resignation of statutory auditors of 
the company and therefore, the provisions of this para of the Caro 
Order-2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)	 In our opinion and According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, and on the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected 
date of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities and other information accompanying the financial 
statements , there is no material uncertainty exist as on date of the 
audit report and the company is capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet dated.

(xx)	 In our opinion and According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not developed and implemented any 
corporate social responsibility initiatives as the said provisions are 
not applicable to the company hence clause xx is not applicable to 
the company.

(xxi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on our examination of the records of the Company 
comprising independent audit reports on financial statement of 
subsidiary company, No Adverse remark and any qualification 
has been included in the audit report of the subsidiary Company 
therefor the said provisions clause xxi is not applicable to the 
company.

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 017544N

Place	 :	 Noida

Dated	 :	 23/05/2025

CA Satya Prakash Garg
Partner

Membership No. 083816
PEER REVIEWED

UDIN:25083816BMLGZW4129                                     
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st 
March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31st March, 2025, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 017544N

Place	 :	 Noida

Dated	 :	 23/05/2025

CA Satya Prakash Garg
Partner

Membership No. 083816
PEER REVIEWED

UDIN: 25083816BMLGZW4129                                     
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 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025 
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars  Note 
No. 

 As at  
March 31, 2025 

 As at  
March 31, 2024 

 I. ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
(a)	 Property, plant and equipment  3  19.56  22.28 
(b)	 Goodwill  22.92  22.92 
(c)	 Intangible assets  4  0.06  0.06 
(d)	 Financial assets  -    -   
	 (i) Investments  5 375.54  505.80 
	 (ii) Loans  -    -   
(e)	 Deferred tax assets (net)  6    -  16.04 
(f )	 Other non-current assets  -    -   
Total non-current assets  418.08 567.11 
Current assets 
(b)	 Financial assets
	 (i) Stock in trade  7  2119.31  1,619.13 
	 (ii) Trade receivables  8 52.67  91.02 
	 (iii) Cash and Bank Balances  9 85.27 31.95 
	 (iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above  9(a)  48.75  38.75 
	 (v) Other financial assets  10  186.02  131.24 
(b)	 Other current assets  11  14.64  20.57 
(c)	 Current tax assets (net)  12  35.41  28.47 
Total current assets  2,542.06  1,961.15 
Total assets 2,960.15  2,528.26 

  II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a)	 Equity share capital  13  914.02  914.02 
(b)	 Other equity  14  1,027.14  1,336.56 
(c)	 Non-controlling interests  170.46  145.56 
Total Equity 2,111.63 2,396.13
Liabilities    -    - 
Non-current liabilities    -    - 
(a)	 Borrowings  15    -    - 
(b)	 Provisions  16  32.75  33.47 
Total non-current liabilities 32.75  33.47 
Current liabilities 
(a)	 Financial liabilities
	  (i) Borrowings  17  804.22  61.61 
	  (ii) Trade payables  18  -    -   
	 -	 due to micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   
	 -	 due to creditors other than micro  and small enterprises  -    -   
 	 (iii) Other financial liabilities  19  4.89  3.53 
(b)	 Other current liabilities  20  6.66  2.31 
(c)	 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)  21   -  31.20 
Total current liabilities 815.77 98.65
Total Liabilities 848.52 132.13
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,960.15  2,528.26 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements  1 to 51 

As per our report of even date

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration No. 017544N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

Satya Prakash Garg
Partner
M. No.083816

Vijay Mehta
Managing Director
DIN : 00057151

Priyanka Mehta
Director
DIN : 00058291

Place	 :	 New Delhi
Dated	 :	 May 23, 2025

Debashis K Mohanty
Chief Financial Officer

Rachita Aggarwal
Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs except EPS) 

Particulars Note 
No.

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

I. Revenue from operations 22 22055.29  23,285.12 

II. Other income 23 32.04  43.21 

III. Total Income (I+II)  22,087.33  23,328.33 

IV. Expenses :

Purchase of stock-in-trade of shares/ securities 22435.46 22648.32

Change in stock-in-trade of shares/ securities 24  (500.18)  (446.55)

Employee benefit expense 25 140.70 45.34

Finance cost 26 38.43 62.10

Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 7.09 7.14

Other expenses 28 179.81 148.58

Total expenses (IV)  22,301.32  22,464.92 

V. Profit/(loss) before tax (III-IV) (211.19)  863.41 

VI. Tax Expense: 31

Current tax  - 18.04

Deferred tax  -    -   

Income tax earlier years ( 2.80)  -   

Total tax expense 2.80 18.04

VII. Profit/ (loss) After Tax for the year (V-VI) (211.19) 845.37 

VIII Exceptional Item
Loss on Derecognition of Subsidiary

- -

IX. Total Profit/(Loss) After Tax for the year (211.19)  845.37 

X. Other Comprehensive Income

(A) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -    -   

(B) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -    -   

(i) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income (73.31) 140.44

(ii) Income tax (expense)/credit relating to above items

Total Other comprehensive income/(loss) (X)  140.44  140.44 

XI. Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year (X+XI)  (284.50)  985.81 

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: -

Owners of the Company  (236.10)  776.17 

Non-controlling interest  24.91  69.19 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to: -

Owners of the Company (73.31)  140.44 

Non-controlling interest

XII. Earnings per equity share of Rs. 2 each 29

  - Basic (0.52)  1.70 

  - Diluted  (0.52)  1.70 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements			   1 to 51

As per our report of even date

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration No. 017544N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

Satya Prakash Garg
Partner
M. No.083816

Vijay Mehta
Managing Director
DIN : 00057151

Priyanka Mehta
Director
DIN : 00058291

Place	 :	 New Delhi
Dated	 :	 May 23, 2025

Debashis K Mohanty
Chief Financial Officer

Rachita Aggarwal
Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended  
March 31, 2025

 For the year ended  
March 31, 2024

a) Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the year  (213.98)  863.41 

Adjustments for:
-	 (Profit)/Loss from Investment sold  -    -   

-	 Depreciation and amortisation  7.09  7.14 

-	 Profit on Sale of Fixed Asset  -    (0.13)

-	 Miscallaneous Income  (1.00)  (0.14)

-	 Interest expense  38.39  61.93 

-	 Interest income  (3.72)  (2.08)

-	 MAT Credit/Deferred tax assets/Income tax/Gratuity provision w/off 18.11- -

-	 Other Income Received  (95.00)  (55.10)

-	 Dividend received from investments  (27.32)  (40.87)

Operating profit before changes in assets and liabilities  (277.44)  834.16 
Adjustments for:

-	 Decrease / (increase) in stock-in-trade  (500.18)  (446.55)

-	 Decrease / (increase) in current financial assets  (16.42)  (87.15)

-	 Decrease / (increase) in other current assets  5.93  3.38 

-	 Increase/ (decrease) in financial liabilities  1.36  (2.23)

-	 Increase/ (decrease) in current liabilities and provisions  (26.85)  (0.96)

-	 Increase/ (decrease) in Trade payables  (38.01)

 (813.59)  262.63 
Taxes (paid)/refund  (6.91)  (5.90)

Cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (820.50)  256.72 
b) Cash flows from investing activities

-	 Loans given  -    -   

-	 Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (4.37)  (0.44)

-	 Profit on sale of Investment - -

-	 (Purchase)/Sale of Fixed Asset  -    0.30 

-	 Change in interest in subsidiary  -    -   

-	 (Purchase)/Sale of non-current investments  56.95  270.01 

-	 Interest received  3.72  2.08 

-	 Capital advances given

-	 Miscallaneous Income  1.00  0.14 

-	 Other Income Received  95.00  55.10 

-	 Dividend received  27.32  40.87 

Cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities  179.63  368.05 
c) Cash flows from financing activities

-	 Increase/ (decrease) in short-term borrowings  742.60  (571.35)

-	 Interest paid  (38.93)  (61.93)

Cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities  704.22  (633.28)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) during the year ( a+b+c)  63.34)  (8.50)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  70.70  79.21 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 134.02  70.70 

As per our report of even date

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration No. 017544N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

Satya Prakash Garg
Partner
M. No.083816

Vijay Mehta
Managing Director
DIN : 00057151

Priyanka Mehta
Director
DIN : 00058291

Place	 :	 New Delhi
Dated	 :	 May 23, 2025

Debashis K Mohanty
Chief Financial Officer

Rachita Aggarwal
Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
A.	 Equity Share Capital 	 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Balance as at  
April 1, 2023

Movement during the 
year 2023-24

Balance as at  
March 31, 2024

Movement during the 
year 2024-25

Balance as at  
March 31, 2025

 914.02  -    914.02  -    914.02 

B.  Other Equity 

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Attributable 
to owners of 

the parent

Non-
controlling 

interest

Total

General  
reserve

Capital  
reserve

Special  
reserve

Securities 
premium 

Retained  
earnings

Equity instruments 
through OCI

Balance as at April 1, 2023  7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (1,571.32)  585.54 419.94  76.36  496.30 

Profit/ (Loss) for the year  -    -    -    -    845.37  -   776.18 69.19  8456.37

Other Comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    -   140.40  140.40  -   140.40 

Trf form OCI to retained earnings  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at March 31, 2024  7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (725.95)  725.98  1336.56  145.55  1482.11 

Balance as at April 1, 2024  7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (725.95)  725.98 1336.56 145.55  1482.11 

Profit/ (Loss) for the  year  -    -    -    -   (211.19)  -   (236.10)  24.91  (211.19) 

Other Comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    -    (73.31) (73.31)  -    (73.31) 

Trf form OCI to retained earnings  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at March 31, 2025  7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (937.14) 652.67  1,027.15  170.46  1,197.61 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements			   1 to 51
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Notes Forming Part Of The Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2025

1)	 Company Overview

	 MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED is company incorporated 
under the Companies Act, 1956 and is engaged in capital market 
operations and merchant banking activities.

2)	 Basis of Preparation and Presentation

a)	 Statement of compliance

	 The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

	 Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a 
newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to 
an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting 
policy hitherto in use.

b)	 Principles of Consolidation

	 The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to Mefcom Capital 
Markets Limited and its subsidiary (hereinafter collectively referred 
to as “the Group”). The consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared on the following basis:

i)	 The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been 
combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book 
values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after 
fully eliminating material intra-group balances and intra-group 
transactions and resulting in unrealised profits or losses, unless cost 
cannot be recovered.

ii)	 The Financial Statements of the Subsidiary in the Consolidation are 
drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the Company i.e., 
March 31, 2024.

iii)	 The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary, over 
the net assets at the time of acquisition of shares in the subsidiary is 
recognized in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve 
as the case may be. 

iv)	 Non-controlling Interest in the Net Assets of the Consolidated 
Subsidiary consists of:

a)	 The amount of equity attributable to Non-controlling interest at the 
date on which the investment in the Subsidiary is made; and

b)	 The Non-controlling’s share of movements in Equity since the date 
the Parent Subsidiary relationship came into existence.

v)	 Non-controlling Interest share in the Net Loss for the year of the 
Consolidated Subsidiary is identified and adjusted against the Profit 
After Tax of the Group.

c)	 Particulars of Consolidation

	 The financial statements of the following subsidiary has been 
considered for the purpose of consolidation: -

Name of the 
Company

Country of 
Incorporation

% Shareholding

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Mefcom Securities 
Limited (MSL)

India
59.998% 59.998% 59.998%

1.	 Significant Accounting Policies

a.	 Use of estimates and judgements

	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with 
Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and 
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect 
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting 
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are 
made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances 
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in 
the financial statements in the period in which changes are made. 
Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in 

the period in which the results are known/ materialised.

b.	 Revenue recognition

(i)	 Income from trading in securities and derivatives comprises profit/ 
loss on sale of securities held as inventories and profit/ loss on equity 
and derivatives instruments. Profit/ loss on sale of securities are 
determined on FIFO basis.

(ii)	 On settlement or squaring-up of contracts for Equity Index/ Stock 
Futures, the profit or loss is calculated as the difference between 
settlement/ squaring-up price and contract price. Accordingly, debit 
or credit balance pertaining to the settled/ squared-up contract in 
‘Mark-to-Market Margin–Equity Index/ Stock Futures Account’ is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii)	 Income from Merchant Banking Operations is accounted on accrual 
basis, when the right to receive is established in terms of the 
agreements with respective clients.

(iv)	 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is 
established.

(v)	 Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably. 

c.	 Employee benefits 

(i)	 Short-term employee benefits

	 Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense on an 
undiscounted basis in the statement of profit and loss of the year in 
which the related service is rendered.

(ii)	 Post-employment benefits

	 Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)

	 Liabilities with regard to the gratuity plan are determined on 
estimation basis at each balance sheet date using the projected 
unit credit method. The Company recognizes the net obligation of 
a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability. 
Remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, on the 
net defined benefit liability are recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income which are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
periods.

d.	 Property, plant and equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation / impairment loss, if any. Cost includes freight, duties, 
taxes, and other incidental expenses.

e.	 Intangible assets

	 Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amount 
of amortization. Cost includes freight, duties, taxes, and other 
incidental expenses.

f.	 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on 
Written down value method at the rate and in the manner prescribed 
in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

	 Amount spent on renovation including extensions on office 
premises, taken on rent, is capitalised under the head ‘Leased hold 
improvements’ and amortised on straight line basis during the lease 
term on pro-rata basis.

	 The Company has applied for the one-time transition exemption of 
considering the carrying cost on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2016 
as the deemed cost under IND AS and hence regarded thereafter as 
historical cost.

g.	 Stock-in-trade

	 Securities acquired with the intention to trade are classified as stock-
in-trade. Stock-in-trade is valued at market/ fair value. The profit or 
loss on sale of securities is recognised on trade date in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.

h.	 Leases

	 Lease under which the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
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are not transferred to lessee is classified as operating lease. Lease 
payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense on a 
straight-line basis in net profit in the statement of profit and loss over 
the lease term. Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 
116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing 
on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method on the 
date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the 
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted 
at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at its 
carrying amount. 

	 The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for 
building. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, 
at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset 
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether 
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, 
the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use 
of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the 
lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the 
asset.

	 The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is 
a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value 
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating 
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of 
the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

i.	 Income tax

	 Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax 
(including MAT). Tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly 
in equity or other comprehensive income, in such cases the tax is 
also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

	 Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
profit and are accounted for using the liability method. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognized for 
all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and 
allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary 
differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax 
rates. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set and 
presented as net.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against 
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

	 Credit of MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent 
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal 
income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which 
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the 
MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said 
asset is created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and 
shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same 
at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of 
MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing 
evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax 
during the specified period.

j.	 Earnings per Share

	 Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net 
profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing 
the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company 
by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for 

deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted 
average number of equity shares that could have been issued 
upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive 
potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had 
the equity shares been actually issued at fair value.

k.	 Financial Instruments

	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial 
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity.

(i)	 Initial Recognition and measurement

	 On initial recognition, all the financial assets and liabilities are 
recognized at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial 
asset or  financial liability except financial asset or financial liability 
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs of 
financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through the Profit 
and Loss are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

(ii)	 Subsequent measurement

	 Financial assets carried at amortised cost

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is 
held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of 
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVTOCI)

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

	 A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit and loss 
unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other 
comprehensive income.

	 Financial liabilities

	 The financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost 
using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables 
maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying 
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments.

l.	 Provisions and Contingencies

	 A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation 
as a result of past event and it is probable that there will be an 
outflow of resources in respect of which a reliable estimate can be 
made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible 
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where 
it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 
Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements. Contingent assets are not recognised.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

3. 	  Property, plant and equipment 					      (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

 Particulars " Leasehold  
Improvements 

"

 Furniture 
and 

Fixtures 

" Office  
Equipments "

 Computers  Laptops  Vehicles  Air 
Condition 

Set 

 EPBX & 
Intercom 

System 

 Total 

 Gross carrying amount 

 Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2023  9.24  24.58  30.02  84.11  0.45  75.04  4.48  3.29  231.22 

 Additions  -    -   0.24 0.20  -   0.44-   

 Disposal/Adjustments   -    -    4.18  -    -   5.40    -    -   5.40 

 Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2024  9.24  24.58  30.26  84.31  0.45  69.64  4.48  3.29  226.26 

 Additions  -    -    -  2.31 2.06    4.37 

 Disposal/Adjustments   -    -    -    -    -    5.40  -    -    5.40 

 Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2025  9.24  24.58  30.26  86.62  2.50  69.64  4.48  3.29  230.62 

 Accumulated Depreciation 

 As at April 1, 2023  9.24  23.63  25.06  80.33  0.42  56.15  4.22  3.07  202.15 

 Depreciation for the year  -   (0.03)-    1.07  0.12  -    5.86  0.02  0.03  7.07 

 Disposal/Adjustments   -    -    -    -    -   5.23-    -    -   5.23-   

 As at March 31, 2024  9.24  23.60  26.13  80.45  0.42  56.78  4.24  3.10  203.98 

 Depreciation for the year  -    )  1.29  1.41 0.34    4.02  0.01  0.02  7.08 

 Disposal/Adjustments   -    -    -    -    -    5.23  -    -   - 

 As at March 31, 2025  9.24  23.60  27.43  81.86  0.76  60.79  4.25  3.11  211.06 

 Net Carrying amount 

 As at March 31, 2025  -    0.98  2.84  4.76  1.74  8.84  0.23  0.18  19.56 

 As at March 31, 2024  -    0.98  4.13  3.86  0.02  12.86  0.23  0.19  22.28 

4.	 Intangible assets		   (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

Particulars Softwares Total

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2023  1.26  1.26 

Additions  -    -   

Disposal/Adjustments  -    -   

Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2024  1.26  1.26 

Additions  -    -   

Disposal/Adjustments  -    -   

Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2025  1.26  1.26 

Accumulated amortisation

As at April 1, 2023  1.13  1.13 

Charge for the year  0.07  0.07 

Deduction/ Adjustment  -    -   

As at March 31, 2024  1.19  1.19 

Charge for the year  0.00  0.00 

Disposal/Adjustments  -    -   

As at March 31, 2025  1.20  1.20 

Net Carrying amount

As at March 31, 2025  0.06  0.06 

As at March 31, 2024  0.06  0.06 



MEFCOM CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED

54 Annual Report 2024-25

5.	 Non Current Investments				    (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Investments in equity instruments

(i) Quoted - Measured at Fair Value through OCI   

Banswara syntex ltd. 
3,08,000 (2024-3,50,000 of Rs.5 each) shares of Rs.5 each  375.14   505.40  

Quoted total  375.14  505.40 

Unquoted

Others - measured at Cost

DSE Ltd. 0.40 0.40

40,000 (2021-40,000) shares of 1 each

a) Investment in subsidiary measured at cost

29,99,900 (March 31, 2019: 29,99,900) equity shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid up 
of Mefcom Securities Ltd. - -

Unquoted total  0.40  0.40 

Total  375.54 505.80

6.	 Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Deferred tax assets  16.04  16.04 

Mat credit entitlement  -   

Total  16.04  16.04 

7	 Stock In tarde

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Stock-in-trade of shares and securities*  1,619.13  1,172.58 

Total  1,619.13  1,172.58 

	 *Fair value through P&L.

8.	 Trade Receivables	 	  (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

Particulars   As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Unsecured, considered good   91.02  32.75 

Less: Allowance for Impairment loss  -   

Total   91.02  32.75 

	 Ageing of trade receivables; -				     (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

Particulars Not Due  Less than 
6 months 

6 months 
to 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

As at 31 March 2025

Undisputed trade receivable- considered good  -    19.92  -    -    -    32.75  52.67 

Undisputed trade receivable -Credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed trade receivables - considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  -    19.92  -    -    -    32.75  52.67 

Less: Allowance for credit loss  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Net  -    19.92  -    -    -    32.75  52.67 

Particulars Not Due  Less than 
6 months 

 6 months 
to 1 year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

As at 31 March 2024

Undisputed trade receivable- considered good  -   58.28    -    -    -    32.75  91.02 

Undisputed trade receivable -Credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed trade receivables - considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  -    58.28    -    -    -    32.75  91.02 

Less: Allowance for credit loss  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Net  -   58.28    -    -    -    32.75  91.02 
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9.	 Cash and Bank Balances

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

(1) Cash & cash equivalents  -   

Cash on hand  0.44  0.46 

Balances with banks  -   

    -  in current accounts 84.83  31.50 

      - In deposit accounts with maturity less than three months  -   

Total  85.27  31.95 

9	 (a).	 Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Fixed Deposit (more than three months but less than twelve months)  48.75  38.75 

Total  48.75  38.75 

10.	 Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Unsecured, considered good  -   

(i) Advances against goods, services and others  -   

(ii) Security deposits  185.03  130.46 

(iii) Interest accrued on term deposits  0.99  0.78 

(iv) Interest accrued on ICD

Total  186.02  131.24 

11.	 Other Current Assets

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Unsecured, considered good

(i) Prepaid expenses 6.45  0.46 

(ii) Balance with Government authorities  4.92  16.72 

(iii) Other advances  0.14  0.16 

(iv) Others  3.13  3.24 

Total  14.64  20.57 

12.	 Current Tax Assets (Net) 	 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Advance tax including TDS receivable (net of provision)  35.41  28.47 

Total  35.41  28.47 

13.	 Equity Share Capital	  (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

 No. of shares  Amount (Rs.)  No. of shares  Amount (Rs.) 

Authorised 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each  50,000,000  1,000.00  10,000,000  1,000.00 

Total  50,000,000  1,000.00  10,000,000  1,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of ₹ 10 each  45,700,840  914.02  9,140,168  914.02 

Total  45,700,840  914.02  9,140,168  914.02 
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(a)	 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :	

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 No. of shares  No. of shares 

Shares at the beginning of the year  45,700,840  9,140,168 

Add: shares issued during the year - -

Less: buy back of shares during the year - -

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  45,700,840  9,140,168 

(b)	 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. 
The dividend , if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders except in case of interim dividend. In the 
event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

(c)	 Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars  As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

 No. of shares  % holding  No. of shares  % holding 

Vijay Mehta  29,745755 65.09%  29,133,255 63.75%

Karan Mehta  3,625,000 7.93%  3,625,000 7.93%

	 As per the records of the company, the above shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

(d)	 Shareholding of promoter(s)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 % Chages 
during the year

 No. of shares  % holding  No. of shares  % holding 

(a) Promoters

Vijay Mehta  29,745,755 65.09%  29,133,255 63.75% 1.34%

(b) Promoter's Group

Karan Mehta  3,625,000 7.93%  3,625,000 7.93% 0.00%

Priyanka mehta  17,500 0.04%  17,500 0.04% 0.00%

Vijay mehta & sons - -  612,500 1.34%   -1.34%

Ikma infoway Private Limited  625,000 1.37%  625,000 1.37% 0.00%

Total  34,013,255 74.43%  34,013,255 74.43%

14.	 Other Equity				     (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Attributable 
to owners of 

the parent

Non-
controlling 

interest

Total

General  
reserve

Capital  
reserve

Special  
reserve

Securities 
premium 

Retained  
earnings

Equity 
instruments 
through OCI

Balance as at April 1, 2023  7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (1,008.09)  526.14  896.94  103.19  1,000.14 

Profit/ (Loss) for the year  (563.23)  -    (536.40)  (26.83)  (563.23)

Other Comprehensive Loss for the year (net 
of tax)

 -    59.40  59.40  -    59.40 

Trf form OCI to retained earnings  -    -    -    -    -   
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Balance as at March 31, 2024  7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (1,571.32)  585.54  419.94  76.36  496.30 

Balance as at April 1, 2024  7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (1,571.32)  585.54  419.94  76.36  496.30 

Profit/ (Loss) for the year  845.37  -    776.17  69.19  845.37 

Other Comprehensive Loss for the year (net 
of tax)

 -    140.44  140.44  -    140.44 

Trf form OCI to retained earnings  -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at March 31, 2025  7.95  154.17  7.00  1,112.98  (725.95)  725.98  1,336.56  145.56  1,482.11 

(i) General reserve

	 General Reserve represents the statutory reserve in accordance with Indian Corporate law wherein a portion of profit is apportioned to 
general reserve. Under Companies Act, 1956 it was mandatory to transfer amount before a company can declare dividend. However, under 
Companies Act, 2013 transfer of any amount to General reserve is at the discretion of the Company.

(ii) Securities Premium

	 Securities premium represents the amount received in excess of par value of securities . Premium on redemption of securities is accounted in 
security premium available. Section 52 of Companies Act, 2013 specify restriction and utilisation of security premium.

(iii) Retained earnings

	 Retained earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company.

(iv) Capital Reserve

	 Capital reserve is a reserve created on account of forfeiture shares  in earlier years.

(v) Equity Instruments Through Other Comprehensive Income

	 Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation 
of equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

15	 Non Current Borrowings

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at
 March 31, 2024

Secured Loan  -    -   

Less : Current maturities of long-term debt  -   

Total 0.00 0.00

16.	 Provisions

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Provsion for Bad  debt  32.75  32.75 

Provision for employee benefits  -  0.72 

Total  32.75  33.47 

17	 Current Borrowings

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Add : Current maturities of long-term debt 250.00  0.05 

MTF Margin from ICICI Bank (Secured)  238.20  38.72 

SAM Margin from ICICI Bank (Secured) 316.02  22.84 

Total 804.22  61.61 

18	 Trade Payables		 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Due to micro and small enterprises  -  - 

Due to others  -  38.01 

 -  38.01 

	 *The Company has not received any memorandum from ‘suppliers’ (as required to be filed by the ‘Supplier’ with the notified authority under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006) claiming the status as on 31st March, 2024 as Micro or Small enterprises. 
Consequently, the interest paid/ payable by the company to such Suppliers during the year is Nil (Previous year : Nil).
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	 Ageing of trade payables : -	   

 Particulars Undue  Less than 
1 year 

 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

 As at 31 March 2025

 Outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Others  -    -    -    -    -   -   

 Total trade payables  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 As at 31 March 2024 

 Outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 Others  -  -    -    -    38.01  38.01 

 Total trade payables -  -    -    -    38.01  38.01 

19	 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Employees related payables  1.57  2.05 

Security deposit  -    1.00 

Others Liabilities  1.98  2.73 

Total  3.54  5.78 

20.	 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Statutory dues payable  0.13  0.49 

Margin From clients  -    -   

Other liabilities  2.18  2.79 

Total  2.31  3.27 

21	 Current tax liabilities(net)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Tax provision (net of advance tax)  31.20  13.16 

Total  31.20  13.16 

22. 	  Revenue From Operations 		    

 Particulars   For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

 Sale of shares/ securities (stock-in-trade)  23,193.24  6,608.95 

 Sale of services 

  -merchant banking activities  12.45  0.50 

 Profit on sale of shares/securities (Non-Delivery) (net)  (16.46)  (0.50)

 Profit/ (Loss) on sale of current investments (net)  -    -   

 Loss on dealing in equity / Index derivatives (net)  -    -   

 Profit on sale of shares/securities (Future & option)  27.53  (18.92)

 -Brokerage Income  12.02  1.52 

 Other Operating income  1.24 (6.72)   

 -Other Income  55.10 -  

 Total  23,285.12  6,584.83 

23. 	  Other Income  	 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Particulars   For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

 Profit on sale of Fixed Assets  0.13  -   

 Miscellaneous income  0.14  0.13 

 Profit on sale of Investment  -    -   

 Dividend income  40.87  40.00 

 Interest Income  2.08  2.03 

 Total  43.21  42.15 
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24. 	  Change In Stock-In-Trade Of Shares/ Securities 

 Particulars   For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

 Opening stock-in-trade 

    -  Shares and securities  1,172.58  1,624.32 

 -   

 Closing stock-in-trade  -   

    -  Shares and securities  1,619.13  1,172.58 

 -   

 (Increase)/ decrease in stock-in-trade  (446.55)  451.74 

25. 	  Employee Benefit Expense 

 Particulars   For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

 Salaries and wages  71.80  43.59 

 Contribution to Fund (PPF)  0.57  0.64 

 Staff welfare expenses  0.93  1.11 

 Total  140.70  45.34 

26. 	  Finance Cost 

 Particulars   For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

 Interest expenses  38.39  61.93 

 Bank and other finance charges  0.05  0.17 

 Total  38.43  62.10 

27	 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

 Particulars   For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

Depreciation on tangible assets  7.08  7.07 

Amortisation of intangible assets 0.01.  0.07 

Total depreciation and amortisation expense  7.09  7.14 

28 	  Other Expenses 

 Particulars   For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

 Rent  14.76  11.17 

 Electricity charges  4.76  3.92 

 Stock Exchange charges  9.46 4.11 

 Security transaction charges  43.31  49.46 

 Printing & stationery  0.65  0.35 

 Travelling and conveyance 22.15  5.17 

 Postage and telephone expenses  1.42  1.48 

 Fees & subscription 17.08  8.23 

 Insurance  0.82  1.11 

 Professional charges   3.27  6.78 

 Auditor fees #  0.75  0.64 

 Depositary Charges 1.17  0.88 

 Repair & maintenance to buildings  5.62 1.82 

 Repair & maintenance to others  4.23  3.39 

 Brokerage Paid  31.60  31.76 

 SEBI Turnover Fees  0.01  0.01 

 Advertisement & publicity expenses  0.35  0.34 

 Sponsorship fee  -    - 

 Business promotion expenses  2.21  2.36 

 Filing & listing Fees  0.32  1.08 
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 Particulars   For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

 Diwali expenses 0.39-    - 

 Pledge Charges  -    -   

 GST on Share Trading  6.01  6.04 

 Balance/Sundry assets written off 3.58 0.05 

 Board Meeting Fee  -    -   

 Vehicle Running & Maintenance  0.28  0.18 

 Director's sitting fee  0.63  0.48 

 Provsion for Bad  debt  -  -   

 Donation  1.00  0.94 

 Miscellaneous expenses  4.00  6.84 

 Total  179.81  148.58 

	 # Details of payment to auditors  	 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs)

 Particulars   For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

 Statutory audit fees  1.00  0.84 

 Tax audit fees - -

 Total payment to auditors 1.00 0.84

29. 	  Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

 Particulars   For the year ended  
March 31, 2025 

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2024 

 Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders (Rs.) (A) (236.10)  776.17

 Weighted average number of outstanding equity shares (B)  45,700,840  45,700,840 

 Nominal value per equity share (Rs.) 

 Basic EPS (Amount in Rs.) (A/B)  1.70  (1.17)

 Diluted EPS (Amount in Rs.) (A/B)  1.70  (1.17)

30	 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

	   As per the management the company do not have any Contingent Liability and Commitment for the Current year 2024-25 (Previous year: Nil).

31	 a)	 Income tax expense		 	  (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

 Particulars   For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Current tax - 18.04

Deferred tax  -   -

Income tax earlier years  -   -

Total tax expense - 18.04

b)	 Reconciliation of effective tax rate

	 A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit / (loss) before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised income 
tax expense for the year indicated are as follows:

 (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Profit before tax (A)  (236.10)  863.41

Enacted tax rate in India (B) 25.17% 25.17%

Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate (A*B) (53.86) 217.32

Adjustments on account of disallowances - 0.13

Earlier tax adjustment - (207.36)

Changes in recognised temporary difference - 7.95

Tax expense reported - 18.04
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c)	 Deferred tax 

	 Management reviewed the deferred tax assets/liabilities on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting purpose at reporting date and in view of virtual uncertainty of taxable profits, the deferred tax (net 
assets) on temporary differences for the reporting financial year i.e. 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025 has not been considered.

32	 Leases

	 The Group has leased facilities under cancellable operating lease arrangements with a lease term ranging from one to three years, which are subject 
to renewal at mutual consent thereafter. The cancellable arrangements can be terminated by either party after giving due notice. The lease rent 
expenses recognised during the year amounts to Rs. 14.76 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 11.17 lakhs).

33	 Segment Reporting

	 The Company is in the business of capital market activities which comprises of proprietary trading in securities and derivatives, merchant banking, 
having similar economic characteristics which is regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker for assessment of Company’s performance 
and resource allocation. The Segment information as required by Ind AS-108 ‘Operating Segments’ on segment reporting has complied on the basis 
of the financial statements is disclosed below:

													              (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

 Sr. No.  Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

1 Segment Revenue

(a) Trading in Shares & Securities  21,921.66  23,272.67 

(b) Merchant Banking Service  133.63  12.45 

Total Revunue  22,055.29  23,285.12 

2 Segment Results

(a) Trading in Shares & Securities  (13.62)  1,070.90 

(b) Merchant Banking Service  38.35  10.51 

Total 24.72  1,081.41 

   'Other Income/Expenses (Unallocated)  (235.91)  (236.04)

Total Profit / (Loss)  before Tax (211.19)  845.37 

3 Segment Assets

(a) Trading in Shares & Securities  2,547.52  2,215.96 

(b) Merchant Banking Service  44.91    -   

(c) Unallocated  367.72  312.30 

Total Segment Assets  2,960.15  2,528.26 

4 Segment Liabilities

(a) Trading in Shares & Securities  804.22  61.61 

(b) Merchant Banking Service

(c) Unallocated  70.53  93.69 

Total Segment Liabilities  132.14  726.65 

Total Capital Employed  2,396.13  1,410.32 
	 The Company operates principally within India and does not have operations in economic environments with different risks and returns; hence, it 

is considered operating in single geographical segment.

34	 Disclosures of related parties as required by Ind AS-24 “Related Party Disclosures”	

(a)	 List of related parties
Name of the related party Nature of relationship

(i) Key Managerial Personnel
Vijay Mehta Managing Director
Priyanka Mehta Director ( w.e.f. 28.05.2024 )
Sameer Rajendra Purohit Executive Director (w.e.f. 12.08.2024 )
Debashis Mohanty Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 30.08.2020)
Priyanka Goyal Company Secretory (w.e.f. 20.05.2023 to 07.04.2025)
Rachita Aggarwal Company Secretory (w.e.f. 23.05.2025)

(ii) Non Executive Directors
Sham Nijhawan Independent Director ( resigned on 24.09.2024 )
Shailendra Haruray Independent Director ( resigned on 24.09.2024 )
Tarsem Chand Garg Independent Director
Nisha Aswani Kumar Director ( resigned on 28.05.2024 )
Karan Mehta Director (w.e.f. 12.08.2024 )
Shri Ram Khanna Independent Director ( w.e.f. 31.01.2025)
Ajay Kumar Poddar Independent Director ( 31.01.2025 to 23.05.2025))
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(ii) Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel
Priyanka Mehta
Karan Mehta

(iii) Enterprise over which key management personnel are able to  exercise 
significant influence
IKMA Infoway Pvt. Ltd.

(iv) Subsidiary Company
Mefcom Securities Limited

(b)	 The following transactions were carried out with related parties: -		  (Amount in ₹ lakhs)

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2025

Year ended  
March 31, 2024

Rent expenses

Vijay Mehta  14.76  11.17 

Remuneration paid
Vijay Mehta  24.00  3.00 

  Priyanka Mehta 7.65 -
  Sameer Rajendra Purohit 35.75 -

Debashis kumar mohanty  7.69 7.80 
Priyanka Goyal 3.00 3.00
Sitting Fee
Sham Nijhawan 0.06  0.12 
Shailendra Haruray 0.15  0.18 
Tarsem chandra Garg 0.14  0.12 

  Priyanka Mehta 0.06 -
  Sameer Rajendra Purohit 0.03 -

Shri Ram Khanna 0.05 -
Raj Makhija 0.09 0.06
Karan Mehta 0.05 -

(c)	 The following balances are due to/ from related parties: -	 (Amount in ₹ lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

Remuneration payable
Debashish K. Mohanty -  0.65 
Pooja Sharma  -  -   

35	 Financial risk management objectives	

	 Financial risk factors

	 The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s primary focus is to foresee the 
unpredictability of capital markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The risk management policies are 
established to ensure timely identification and evaluation of risks, setting acceptable risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls against 
these risks, monitor the risks and their limits, improve risk awareness and transparency.

I.	 Market risk

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The 
Group is exposed in the ordinary course of its business to risks related to equity price flactuations and interest rates.

(a)	 Equity price risk

	 Equity Price Risk is related to the change in market reference price of the investments in equity securities. The fair value of some of the 
Company’s investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income exposes the Company to equity price risks. These 
investments are subject to changes in the market price of securities.

	 The following table details the sensitivity to a 5% movement in the fair value of such quoted equity instruments as at the end of the 
reporting period(s): -	 (Amount in ₹ lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Effect of Increase in fair value of equity instruments  18.76  25.27 

Effect of Decrease in fair value of equity instruments  (18.76)  (25.27)
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(b)	 Interest rate risk

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The inter- corporate deposits and advances given are primarily fixed rate bearing loans and advances. Therefore, the Group 
is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

II.	 Credit risk

	 Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. Credit risk 
encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks.

	 Trade receivables

	 Customer credit risk is managed centrally by the Group and subject to established policy, procedures and control relating to customer 
credit risk management. The outstanding trade receivables are regularly monitored and appropriate action is taken for collection of overdue 
receivables.

(Amount in ₹ lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Neither impaired nor due  -    -   

Upto 12 months  19.92  58.28 

More than 12 months  32.75  32.75 

Total  52.67  91.02 

	 Other financial assets

	 Credit risks from balances with banks and financial institutions and other miscellaneous financial assets are managed in accordance with the 
Group policy.

III.	 Liquidity risk

	 Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain 
sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Group generates sufficient cash flow for operations, 
which together with the available cash and cash equivalents and short term investments provide liquidity in the short-term and long-term.

	 Maturity profile of financial liabilities:

	 The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Trade payables

Upto 12 months  -     

More than 12 months  -    -   

Borrowings (Non - Current)

Upto 12 months - -

More than 12 months  -   -

Borrowings (Current)

Upto 12 months 804.22 61.61

More than 12 months -  -   

Other financial liabilities

Upto 12 months 4.89 3.54

More than 12 months -  -   

Total 808.77 65.16
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36	 Financial instrutment

A)	 Capital Managemnet

	 For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable 
to the equity shareholders . The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

	 The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial 
covenants, if any. The Group reviews its capital structure on regular intervals and is not exposed to any external debt. As part of this review, the 
Management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with the movement in the working capital.

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Long term borrowings  -    -   

Current borrowings 804.22  61.61 

Less: Cash and cash equivalent (85.27)  (31.95)

Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (48.75)  (38.75)

Net debt 670.19  (9.09)

Total equity 2,111.63  2,396.13 

Gearing ratio 31.74 -0.38%

37	 Other disclosures

	 Disclosure of additional information pertaining to the Parent Group, Subsidiaries and Associate as per Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013: -

31, March 2025 Net assets i.e. total assets 
minus total liabilities

Share in Profit/(loss) Share in Other Comprehensive 
Income

Name of the entity in the group As % of  
consolidated net 

assets

Amount 
in Rs.

As % of  
consolidated 
profit / (loss)

Amount 
in Rs.

As % of  
consolidated OCI

Amount 
in Rs.

Parent

Mefcom Capital Markets Limited 95.34% 2,013.21 129.48% (273.46) 100.00% (73.31)

Subsidiaries (Indian)

Mefcom Securities Limited 13.30% 280.80 (17.69%) 37.36  -    - 

Non-controlling interest

- in subsidiaries 8.07% 170.46 (11.79%) 24.91  -    - 

Consolidation Adjustment (0.17) (352.84)  -    -    -   

Total 100.00% 2,111.63 100.00% (211.19) 100.00% (73.31)

31, March 2024 Net assets i.e. total assets 
minus total liabilities

Share in Profit/(loss) Share in Other Comprehensive 
Income

Name of the entity in the group As % of  
consolidated 

net assets

Amount 
in Rs.

As % of  
consolidated 
profit / (loss)

Amount 
in Rs.

As % of  
consolidated 

OCI

Amount 
in Rs.

Parent

Mefcom Capital Markets Limited 98.47%  2,359.37 79.54%  672.38 100.00%  140.44 

Subsidiaries (Indian)

Mefcom Securities Limited 10.16%  243.44 12.28%  103.79  -    - 

Non-controlling interest

- in subsidiaries 6.07%  145.55 8.19%  69.19  -    - 

Consolidation Adjustment  (0.15)  (352.23)  -    -    -   

Total 100.00%  2,396.13 100.00%  845.37 100.00%  140.44 

38	 Valuation of Property, Plant & Equipment, intangible Asset

	 The Group has not revalued its property, plant & machinery and Intangible Assets or both during the current or previous year

39	 Loans or advances to specified persons

	 No loans or advances in the nature of loan are granted to prmoters, directors, KMPS, and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) 
either severally or jointly with other person, that are repayable on demand or without speciifyng any terms or period of repayments.

40	 Details of Benami property held

	 No proceedings have been intiated on or pending against the Group for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 
1988(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
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41	 Borrowing secured against current assets

	 The Group has not  obtained borrowings from the bank against current assets during the year.

42	 Wilful Defaulter	

	 The group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

43	 Relationship with struck off companies

	 The Group has no transactions  with the companies struck off under section 248 of the companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the companies act, 
1956.

44	 Registration of charges or satisfaction with registration of Comopanies(ROC)

	 There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory Period.

45	 Compliance with number of layers of companies

	 The Group has complied with number of layers prescribed under the section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with companies (Restriction on 
number of Layers) Rules, 2017

46	 Compliance with approved scheme(s) odf Amalgamation

	 The Group has not entered into any schemes of arrangemnet which has an accounting impact on current or Previous financial year. 

47	 Utilisation of borrowed funds and Share premium

	 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Group to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Group has not 
received any fund from any party(Funding Party) with the understanding that the group shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Group(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries

48	 Undisclosed  income

	 There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the cureent or previous year in the tax assessments under the income Tax 
Act,1961,that has not been recorded previously in the books of Account.

49	 Details of crypto currency or virtual currency 

	 The Group has not traded or invested in crypto curency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

50	 Utilisation of Borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions

	 The borrowings obtained by the Group from the banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were 
taken.

51	 Previous year Comparatives

	 Previous year’s figures have been re-arranged and regrouped wherever considered necessary.

	 See accompaning notes to the financial statements	 1 to 51

	 As per our report of even date

As per our report of even date

For Satya Prakash Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

Satya Prakash Garg
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M. No.083816

Vijay Mehta
Managing Director
DIN : 00057151

Priyanka Mehta
Director
DIN : 00058291

Place	 :	 New Delhi
Dated	 :	 May 23, 2025

Debashis K Mohanty
Chief Financial Officer

Rachita Aggarwal
Company Secretary
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1. Name of the First Named Shareholder (In block letters)
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3. Registered folio No./*Client ID No. (*Applicable to investors holding shares in dematerialized form)

4. Class of Share Equity

I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary/Special resolution enumerated below by recording my assent or dissent to the said resolution in the following 
manner:

S. No. Item No. No. of shares held by 
me

I assent to the 
resolution

I dissent from the 
resolution

1. Adoption of the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone & 
Consolidated) and the report of Directors and Auditors for the 
year ended 31st March, 2025

2 To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Priyanka Mehta (DIN : 
00058291), who is liable to retire by rotation

3. Appointment of Dr. Shri Ram Khanna as a Non-executive 
Independent Director

4. Appointment of Mr. Vijay Kant Mishra as a Non-executive 
Independent Director

Place:

Date:

(Signatureoftheshareholder)
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I/ we, being the member(s) having	      Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:
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as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 40th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Saturday, 27th 
September, 2025 at 11:30 A.M.at E-15, Ansal Villas, Satbari, New Delhi-110030 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
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1. Adoption of the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone & Consolidated) and the 
report of Directors and Auditors for the year ended 31st March, 2025
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2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Priyanka Mehta (DIN : 00058291), who is liable to 
retire by rotaion

3. Appointment of Dr. Shri Ram Khanna as a Non-executive Independent Director

4. Appointment of Mr. Vijay Kant Mishra as a Non-executive Independent Director
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.....................................................................	 ...............................................................

Full name of Proxy 									              Signature 

(in block capitals) 

NOTE: Shareholder/Proxy holder desiring to attend the meeting should bring his copy of the Annual Report for reference at the meeting
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